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In unity we find strength, 

inresilience we find courage, 

and in perseverance we find progress. 

Together, we build not just for foday, 

but for 2enerations fo come. 
b



Finding Strength in Every Challenege, 

Building for Tomorrow 

At Sheetal, we believe that true growth is not 

defined by the absence of challenges, but by the 
determination with which we face them. This year, 

while marked with its share of hurdles, has been a 

defining moment in our journey. Instead of slowing 

down, we have used this period to strengthen our 

foundation, refine our processes, and build 

capabilities that will drive us forward. Like every 

pioneer who turns obstacles into stepping stones, 
we too have embraced each challenge as an 

opportunity to evolve. This year has been about 

enhancing efficiencies, streamlining operations, 

and investing in innovation, ensuring that Sheetal 

remains agile, future-ready, and committed to 

excellence. Our promise of quality, purity and trust 

continues to guide everything we do — from 

creating products that bring joy to millions, to 

fostering sustainability and responsibility in every 

step. As we look ahead, our vision is clear: to build a 
stronger, more resilient, and future-focused 

Sheetal that not only keeps pace with changing 

times but sets new benchmarks for the FMCG 

industry. 
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CSR [nitiatives 

DJBS Foundation 
Animal Welfare Support for Armed Forces 
Regular cow feeding Ongoing financial and 

programs. resource contributions. 

Healthcare Assistance 
Oxygen cylinders, 
ambulance services 
and cold chambers 
for deceased bodies 
provided free of cost. 

Huneger Relief 
Monthly food 
distribution to 

underprivileged 
communities. 

DJBS 
FOUNDATION 



Awaraness Camp on 
Voting Rights. 

Road Renovation 
Projects. 

Shahid Din Ujavani 
Commeamaoaration. 

CSR Initiatives 

DJBS Foundation 
Seecial Initiatives in 2024-25 

k! ] 

Blood Donation & Diabetes 

Check-Up Camps. 

Donation of Freezers to Old 

Age Homes. 
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Hemoglobin 
Check-Up & Treatment. 

Ghee Distribution to 

needy families. 

Distribution of Slippers 

to Barefooted in Slums. 
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Corporate Information 
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Financial Highlights 

REVENUE FROM OPERATION (Rs. Lacs) 

32,130.58 

35,270.82 

Y 22-2 34,026.42 

s2.676. 

PAT (Rs. Lacs) EBITDA (Rs. Lacs) 

1,656.88 3,699.85 

2,084.08 FY 23-24 4,627.37 

2,045.42 4,481.31 

1,833.55 4,052.58 

609.56 2,959.67 

EARNING PER SHARE (Rs. Lacs) NETWORTH (Rs. Lacs) 

15.78 13,111.29 

FY 23-24 19.85 11,453.37 

FY 22-23 19.48 9,368.78 

FY 21-22 17.46 FY 21-22 7.322.39 

Ev 20-21 5.81 5,479.55 
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Financial Highlights 

{Amount in Lacs except EPS) 

i March Ended 

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 

Operating Income 23188.58 32676.83 3402642 35270.82 32130.58 

Other Income 671,60 3703 17207 279.45 76.58 

Total Income 23860.27 32093.86 3419849 35550.27 3220716 

EBITDA 2095967 052,68 4481.31 462737 3699.85 

Interast 626.98 481.94 T46.99 BBR.TY B56.01 

Profit Before Depreciation & Tax (PEDT) 2332.69 3560.64 373432 37376 304384 

Less : Depreciation 1501.14 1090.29 96437 916.66 79373 

Profit Before Taxation (PBT) B31.55 2470.35 276895 2820.94 2250.11 

Less : Taxation (All Taxes) 221849 G36.80 72453 T36.86 593.23 

Profit After Taxation (PAT) 609.56 1833.55 204542 2084.08 1656.88 

MNet Worth 3479.55 Ta22.39 9358.78 11453.37 13111.29 

Earring Per Share (Basic) (EPS) 5.81 17.46 19.48 19.85 15.78 

Debt/ Equity Ratio 1.30 1.01 0.92 0.73 0.57 

Equity 1050 1050 1050 1050 1050 

EBITDA (%) 12.76% 12.40% 13.47% 13.12% 11.52% 

PAT % 2.63% 5.61% 6.01% 5.81% 5.16% 
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NOTICE 

MOTICE is hereby given that 12th Annual General Meeting of the Members of SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED will be 

held on Saturday, September 20, 2025, at 12.00 PM, through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audic-Visual Means (QAVIM), to 

transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSIMNESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2025, together with Board's Report thereon and Auditors' Reports thereto. 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sanjaybhai Dakubhai Bhuva (DIN:06616086), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re- appointment. 

Re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resalution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 

thereot for the time being in force] and pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, M/s. H.B. Kalaria & 

Associates, Chartered Accountants (ICAI registration Mo. 104571W) be and are hereby reappointed as the Statutory 

Auditors of the Company for the second consecutive term of five years, from the conclusion of this 12th Annual General 

Meeting till the conclusion of the 17th Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2030, to examine and audit the 

accounts of the Company at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company.” 

SPECIAL BUSIMNESS: 

4. Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass without modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 and the Companies (Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014 (including 

statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), a remuneration of Rs.24,190 (Rupees Twenty 

Four Thousand One Hundred and Ninety Only) Including Goods & Service Tax (GST) as applicable and reimbursement 

of actual travel and out of - pocket expenses, for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2026, as fixed by the Audit 

Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the company, to be paid to M/s Tadhani and Co., Cost Accountants 

(Firm Ragistration Number 101837) for the conduct of the Cost Audit of the Company's Milk products be and is hereby 

ratified and confirmed” 

Appointment of Secretarial Auditor 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 

2013, and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with 

Regulation 24A and other applicable regulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (Listing Regulations), [including any statutory modification(s) or re- 

enactmeant(s) thereof for the time being in force] and based on recommendation of Audit Committee of Directors and the 

Board of Directors, M/s Chetan Patel & Associates., Practicing Company Secretaries, be and are hereby appointed as 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from FY2025-26 to 

FY2029-30to undertake Secratarial Audit of the Company, on such remuneration plus applicable taxes, travel and actual 

out-of-pocket expanses, as may be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 

Secretarial Auditor from time to time, 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) be and is heraby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the purpose of 
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giving effect to this resolution.” 

Re-appointment of Mr. Bhupatbhai Dakubhai Bhuva (DIM: 06616061) as aWholeTime Director of the Company. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196 & 197, Schedule V, other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for 

the time being in force) as well as provisions contained in Articles of Association of the Company and in pursuance of 

recommendation of by Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Approval of members of the Company be and is 

hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva (DIN: 06616061) as Managing Director of the 

Company for a period of Five years with effect from September 5, 2025 to September 4, 2030 on such terms and 

conditions mentioned hereunder: 

Remuneration: 

Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva will be paid remuneration of Rs.160,000/- (Rupees One Lac Sixty Thousands Only) per month 

w.e.f. September 05, 2025 with authority to the Board of Directors after receiving recommendations from the Momination 

and remuneration Commitiee to revise the same from time to time in accordance with limits specified in Schedule V to the 

Companias Act, 2013. 

Other Facilities (In addition to above remuneration): 

. He shall also be provided with company-maintained car with driver for performance of his official duties. 

. He shall be provided with telephone and other communication facilities at his residence including cell phone to 

be used for performance of his official duties. 
. The Company shall pay premium of health insurance of Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva and his family on yearly basis. 
. The Company shall pay the premium on yearly basis for the personal accident cover for Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Approval of the members of the Company to the Board of Directors of the Company 

be and is here by accorded, to vary and/or modify the terms and conditions of the Agreement that may be entered as set 

outinthe said agreement including remuneration payable to Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva in such manner and within the limits 

as prescribed in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any amendment, modification, variation or re- 

enactment thereof” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any loss, absence or inadequacy of the profits of the company in any 

financial year, during the term of office of Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, Managing Director of the Company, the above referred 

remuneration shall be paid to him as minimum remuneration subject to the limits as set out in Schedule V to the 

Companies Act, 2013 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection 

including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 

regard and further to execute all necessary documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary, proper, 

desirable or expedient.” 

Re-appointment of Mr. Dineshbhai Dakubhai Bhuva (DIN: 06616078) as aWholeTime Director of the Company. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION; 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 198 & 197, Schedule V, other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for 

the time being in force) as well as provisions contained in Articles of Association of the Company and in pursuance of 

recormmendation of by Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Approval of members of the Company be and is 

hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva (DIN: 06618078) as Whole Time Director of the 

Company for a period of Five years with effect from September 5, 2025 to September 4, 2030 on such terms and 

conditions mentioned hereunder: 
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Remuneration: 

Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva will be paid remuneration of Rs.150,000/- (Rupees One Lac Fifty Thousand Only) per month 
w.e.f. September 05, 2025 with authority to the Board of Directors after receiving recommendations from the Nomination 

and remuneration Committee to revise the same from time to time in accordance with limits specified in Schedule V1o the 

Companies Act, 2013, 

Other Facilities (In addition to above remuneration): 

. He shall also be provided with company-maintained car with driver for performance of his official duties. 

. He shall be provided with telephone and other communication facilities at his residence including cell phone to 

be used for performance of his official duties. 
. The Company shall pay premium of health insurance of Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva and his family on yearly basis. 

. The Company shall pay the premium on yearly basis for the personal accident cover for Mr. Dineshibhai D Bhuva. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Approval of members of the Company to the Board of Directors of the Company be 

and is here by accorded, to vary and/or modify the terms and conditions of the Agreement that may be entered as set out 

in the said agreement including remuneration payable to Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva in such manner and within the limits as 

prescribed in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any amendment, modification, variation or re-enactment 

thereof.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any loss, absence or inadequacy of the profits of the company in any 

financial year, during the term of office of Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva, Whaole Time Director of the Company, the above 

referred remuneration shall be paid to him as minimum remuneration and the same shall be subject ta the limits as set out 

in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 20137 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection 

including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 

regard and further to execute all necessary documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary, proper, 

desirable or expedient” 

Re-appointment of Mr. Sanjaybhai Dakubhai Bhuva (DIN: 06616086) as aWhole Time Director of the Company. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196 & 197, Schedule V, other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made there under (including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment thereof for 

the time being in force) as well as provisions contained in Articles of Association of the Company and in pursuance of 

recommendation of by Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Approval of members of the Company be and is 

hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva (DIN: 06616086) as Whole Time Director of the 

Company for a period of Five years with effect from September 5, 2025 to September 4, 2030 on such terms and 

conditions mantioned hereunder: 

Remuneration: 

Mr. Sanjaybhai O Bhuva will be paid remuneration of Rs.1,40,000/- (Rupees One Lac Forty Thousand Only) per month 

w.e_f. September 05, 2025 with authority to the Board of Directors after receiving recommendations from the Momination 

and remuneration Committee to revise the same from time to time in accordance with limits specified in Schedule V to the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Other Facilities (In addition to above remuneration): 

. He shall also be provided with company-maintained car with driver for performance of his official duties. 

. He shall be provided with telephone and other communication facilities at his residence including cell phone to 

be used for performance of his official duties. 
. The Company shall pay premium of health insurance of Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva and his family on yearly basis. 
. The Company shall pay the premium on yearly basis for the personal accident cover for Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva. 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Approval of members of the Company to the Board of Directors of the Company be 

and is here by accorded, to vary and/or modify the terms and conditions of the Agreement that may be entered as set out 

in the said agreement including remuneration payable to Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva in such manner and within the limits as 

prescribed in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 including any amendment, modification, variation or re-enactment 

thereof.” 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any loss, absence or inadequacy of the profits of the company in any 

financial year, during the term of office of Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva, Whole Time Director of the Company, the above 

referred remuneration shall be paid to him as minimum remuneration and the same shall be subject to the limits as set out 

in Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013." 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members of the Company be accorded to the Board of Directors of the 

Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection 

including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this 

regard and further to execute all necessary documents, applications, returns and writings as may be necessary, proper, 

desirable or expedient” 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Sd/- 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Date: August 25, 2025 Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Amreli [DIM: 06616061] 
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1. 

NOTES 

Information required to be furnished as required under S5-2 and pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015, the particulars of Director who is proposed to be re-appointed is given 

below: 

Name Date | Date of Qualification Share Details of Details of No. of 

of the of Appoin- and Expertise | holding | Directorship Membership / board 

Director | Birth | tment in Functional in the held in other Chairmanship of | meetings 

areas Comp- Companies as Committee(s) attended 

any on 31.03.2025 held in other during 

along with Companies as on | Financial 

listed entities 31.3.2025 along Year 

from which with listed 2024- 

they have entities from 2025 

resigned in the | which they have 

past three resigned in the 

years past three 

years. # 

Mr. 01- 05- He is qualified in | 18,15,450 | NIL. MIL. Seven 

Sanjay 06- 09- Bachelor of Equity 

bhai D. 1878 | 2020 Commerce and | Shares 

Bhuva having vast 

experience in 

administration, 

leadership, and 

public relations. 

Mr. 01- 05- Undear Matriculate, | 8,48,550 | MIL. MIL. Seven 

Dinesh 06- 09- He is having Equity 

bhai 0. 1971 | 2020 expertise in Shares 

Bhuva franchise business, 

corporate 

relationship 

management, 

liasioning, external 

businass affairs, 

corporate social 

responsibility ete. 

M. 13- 05- He is qualified in | 2,38,800 | NIL. MIL. Seven 

Bhupat 01- 09- Bachelor of Equity 

bhai D. 18768 | 2020 Commerce and | Shares 

Bhuva having vast 

experience in 

administration, 

leadership, and 

public relations. 
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Relation of Re-appointed Director with other 

Directors: Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva being brother Of 

Dineshbhai Bhuva and Bhupatbhai Bhuva, 

Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated 

September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of 

Carporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI 

vide circular no. SEBIY HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 

2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 ("SEBI Circular”) 

and other applicable circulars and notifications 

issued (including any statutory modifications or re- 

enactment thereof for the time being in force and as 

amended from time to time, companies are allowed 

to hold AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or 

other audio visual means (QAVM), without the 

physical presence of members at a comman venue. 

In compliance with the said Circulars, AGM shall be 

conducted through VG / OAVM. 

Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 

2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the 

facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the 

members is not available for this AGM. However, the 

Body Corporates are entitied to appoint authorised 

representatives to attend the AGM through 

VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their 

votes through e-vaoting, 

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM 

mode 15 minutes before and after the schaduled time 

of the commencement of the Meeting by following the 

procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of 

participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be 

made available for 1000 members on first come first 

served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 

{Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 

Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend 

the AGM without restriction on account of first come 

first served basis, 

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM 

through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014 (as amended) the Secretarial Standard 

on General Meetings (55-2) issued by the IC31 and 

Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations 2015 (as 

amended), and the Girculars issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is 

providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in 
respect of the business to be transacted at the 

EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has 

entered into an agreement with MNational Securities 

Depository Limited (MSDL) for facilitating woting 

through electronic means, as the authorized agency. 

The facility of casting votes by a member using 

remote e-Vioting system as well as e-voting on the 

date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 

Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Motice 

calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the 

website of the Company at htips://staging. 

bonoboz.in/sheetalfinvestor-relations/. The MNotice 

can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 

Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and MNational Stock 

Exchange of India Limited at www. bseindia. com and 

www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice 

is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 

www.evating.nsdl.com, 

AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in 

compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circulars 

issued from time to time. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR 

REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 

MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 

The remote e-voting period begins on September 

17th, 2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on September 

19th, 2025 at 17:00 P.M. The remote e-voting 

module shall be disabled by NSDL for veting 

thereafter.The Members, whose names appear in 

the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as 

on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 12th 

September 2025, may cast their vote 

electronically. The voting right of shareholders 

shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the 

cut-off date, being 12th September 2025. 

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting 

system? 

The way lo vole elecironically on NSDL e-Voling system 

congists of “Two Steps™which are mentioned below: 

Step1: Accessto NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 

meetings for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 
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In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and emaill Id in their 

demat accounts in order to access e-\oting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 

NSDL. 

For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com 
/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP 
ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the 
OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-\Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
MSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https./feservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a2 mobile, On 
the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter 
your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will 
be able to ses e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-\Voting services and you will be able to see e- 
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL 
and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https:/feservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
click at https:/leservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp 

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https:/fwww.evoting.nadl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mabile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Sharehalder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
accolnt number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e- 
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-\oting period 
o joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience. 

NSDL Mobile App is availoble on 

.‘ AppStore [ Google Play 
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Type of shareholders Login Method 

Individual Shareholders holding | 1. Usears who have opted for COSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

securities in demat mode with existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-\oting 

CDsL page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 

MNew System My easi Tab and then user your existing my easi usemame & 

password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoling is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will 

be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting. Additionally, there is alsa links provided to access the system of all 

e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 

providers' website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & Mew System Myeasi 

Tab and then click on registration option. 

4, Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Mumber and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTF on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option 

where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of 

all e-Voling Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders (holding | You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

securities in demat mode) login | Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, 

through their depository | youwill be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-\Voting option, you will be redirected to 

participants NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e- 

Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-Voling website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remole e- 

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 1D and Forget Password 

option available at abovermentionad website, 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 

Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

indemat mode with NSDL sending arequestat evoling @ nadl.com orcall at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

in demat mode with CDSL sending a request at helpdesk.evoting @ cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 

1800-21-09911 
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Login Method for e-Vioting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website ? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: hittps:/fwww. evoting, nsdl, 

com/ either an a Personal Camputer or on a mobile, 

2. Once the home page of e-Vioting system is launched, click on the icon “Login™ which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl. com/ 

with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e- 

Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User |D details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat Your User ID is: 

(NSDL or CD5L) or Physical 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat | 8Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 1D 

accountwith NSDL. For example if your DP 1D is IN300°** and Client ID is 12****** 

thenyour user IDis IN300* 12+, 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

accountwith CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary 1D is 12************** than your 
USEF D g (preeeesseenssis 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form, EVEM Number followed by Folio Mumber registered with the 

company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then 

userDis 101456001 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast 

your vote., 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voling system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 

password' and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your‘initial password™? 

] If your email 1D is registerad in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ 

is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your 

mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 

password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client D 

for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The pdf file contains your 

‘User ID'and your‘initial passward’, 

{ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 
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6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the 
“Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?"(If 

you are holding shares in your demat 
account with NSDL or CDSL) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are 

holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by 

aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning 

your demat account numberffolio number, 

your PAN, your name and your registered 

address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time 

Password) based login for casting the voles 

on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms 

and Conditions™ by selecting on the chack box. 

Now, you will have to click on “Login™ button. 

After you click on the "Login” button, Home page of e- 

Voting will open, 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General 

Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General 

Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see 

all the companies “EVEMN" in which you are holding 

shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting 

is in active status. 

Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast 

your vote during the remote e-\oting period and 

casting your vote during the General Meeting. For 

joining wirtual meeting, you need to click on 

“WC/OAVM link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

Mow you are ready for e-Voting as the Vioting page 

apens. 

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options ie. 

assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 

for which you wish to cast your vote and click on 

“Bubmit"and also “Confirm”when prompted. 

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 

successiully” will be displayed. 

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you 
by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

page. 

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will 

not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, 

HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority letter ete. with aftested specimen signature 

of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 

authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

chetanpatelcs @ gmail.com with a copy marked to 

evoting @nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (ie 

other than individuals, HUF, NRI ete.) can also upload 

their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney [ Authority 

Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / 

Authority Letter” displayed under "e-Voting" tab in 

their lagin. 

It is strongly recommended not to share your 

password with any other person and take utmost care 

to keep your password confidential. Login to the e- 

voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password, 

In such an event, you will need to go through the 

“Forgot User Details/Password?" or “Physical User 

Reset Password?" option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequenily 

Asked Questions (FAGs) for Shareholders and e- 

voting user manual for Shareholders available at the 

download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 

on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a reguest to (Name of 

MSDL Official) at evating @ nsdl.com 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 

registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 

password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 

resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please 

provide Folio No.,, Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN 

(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 

(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 

to (Company email id). 

In case shares are held in demat mode, please 

provide DPID-CLID {16-digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

beneficiary 1D), Mame, client master or copy of 

Consolidated Account staterent, PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to (Company email id). 

If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities 

in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 

method explained at step 1 (A)i.e. Login method for 
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e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a 

request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id 

and password for e-voting by providing above 

mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on 

e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securilies in demat 

mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and 

Depository Participants. Shareholders are required 

to update their mobile number and email ID correctly 

in their demat account in order to access e-Voting 

facility. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON 

THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER: - 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the 

EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting. 

2, Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be 

present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility 

and have not casted their vote on the Resclutions 

through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 

barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 

e-\oting systemin the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting 

will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote atthe EGM/AGM. 

4, The details of the person who may be contacted for 

any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting 

on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person 

mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE 

EGM/AGMTHROUGHVC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the 

EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e- 

Voting system. Members may access by following the 

steps menlioned above lor Access to NSDL e- 

Voting system. After successful login, you can see 

link of “VC/OAVM" placed under “Join meeting” 

menu against company name. You are requested to 

click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting 

menu. The link for VG/OAVM will be available in 

Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of 

Company will be displayed. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User ID and Password 

for e-\oting or have forgotten the User ID and 

Password may retrieve the same by following the 

remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice 

to avoid last minute rush. 

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through 
Laptops for better experience. 

Further Members will be required to allow Camera 

and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile 

Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Holspot may experience Audio/Video loss due 

to Fluctuation in their respeclive network. It is 

therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN 

Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

Shareholders who would like to express their 

views/have guestions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account 

numberfolio number, email id, mobile number at 

cs@sheetalicecream.com before seven days from 

the date of Annual General Meeting. The same will be 

replied by the company suitably. 

Shareholders holding shares in demat mode, not 

registered their email address and mobile no. with DF, 

are immediately requested to register with your DP. 

CS5 Chetan B. Patel of M/s, Chetan Patel & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries (ICS| Membership 

No.5188, COP: 3986) will act as the Scrutinizer to 

scrutinize the voling during AGM and remote e-voling 

process in a fair and transparent manner. 

Any person who acquires shares of the Company and 

becomes a Member of the Company after sending of 

the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date, 

may obtain the login ID and password by sending a 

request al evoling@ nsdl.co.in. However, if he/she is 

already registered with NSDL for remote e-voling 

then hefshe can use his/her existing User ID and 

password for casting the vote. 
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Date: August 25, 2025 
Place: Amreli 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Sd/- 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Chairman & Managing Director 
[DIN: 06616061] 
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EXPLAMNATORY STATEMENT 
{Pursuant to section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

In confarmity with the provisions of Section 102(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statement sets out all 

material facts relating to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying Notice and should be taken as forming part of the 

Motice. 

Iltem Mo. 4 of Special Business: 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the 

Board shall appoint an individual/ firm of cost accountant(s) in practice, on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, which 

shall also recommend remuneration for such Cost Auditor. The remuneration recommended by the Audit Committee shall be 

considered and approved by the Board of Directors and to be ratified by the shareholders. 

On recommendation of the Audit Committee at its meeting held on 23.05.2025, the Board has considered and approved 

appointment of M/s Tadhani and Co., Cost Accountants (Registration Number 101837), for the conduct of the Cost Audit of the 

Cost Records at a remuneration of Rs. 24,190/~ Including Goods & Service Tax (GST) as applicable and excluding 

reimbursement of actual travel and out-of-pocket expenses for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2026. 

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution set out at ltem MNo. 4 of the Notice for ratification of remuneration by the 

members in terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, as an Ordinary Resolution, 

MNene of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives is concerned or interested, 

financially or otherwise, in the passing of the Resolutions set out at [tem No. 4. 

ITEM NO.5 of Special Business 

Pursuant to recent amendments to Regulation 244 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (Listing Regulations), a listed entity is required to appoint a Secretarial Audit firm for up to two terms of five consecutive 

years, subject to Members approval at the Annual General Meeting. In this regard, based on the recommendation of the Audit 

Committee of Directors, the Board of Directors, atits meeting on August 25, 2025, approved the appointment of M/s, Chetan Patel 

and Associates. Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Company's Secretarial Auditor for five years commencing from FY2025- 

26 to FY2029-30, subject to Members' approval, after taking into account the eligibility of the firm's gualification, experience, 

independent assessment, competency and Company’s previous experience based on the evaluation of the quality of audit work 

done by them in the past. The Company has received a consent letter from Chetan Patel and Associates, confirming their 

willingness to undertake the Secretarial Audit and issue the Secretarial Audit Report in accordance with Section 204 of the Act 

along with other applicable provisions, if any, under the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, as amended. Chetan Patel and Associates hereby affirms its compliance with Regulation 24A(1B) of the Listing 

Regulations in providing services to the Company. Further, Chetan Patel and Associates confirms that they hold a valid peer 

review certificate issued by ICSI and it fulfills all eligibility criteria and has not incurred any disqualifications for appointment, as 

outlined in the SEBI circular dated December 31, 2024, 

Chetan Patel and Associates is a leading firm of practicing Company Secretaries with over more than 24 years of experience in 

delivering comprehensive professional services across Corporate Laws, SEBI Regulations and FEMA Regulations. Their 

expertise includes conducting Secretarial Audits, Due Diligence Audits, Compliance Audits etc. 

The Board of Directors has approved remuneration of and out of pocket expenses for FY26 and for subsequent years of the term, 

such fee as determined by the Board on recommendation of Audit Committee of Directors in consultation with Chetan Patel and 

Associates. Besides the audit services, the Company would also obtain permitted services which are to be mandatorily received 

from the Secretarial Auditor under various statutory regulations from time to time, for which Chetan Patel and Associates will be 

remunerated separately on mutually agreed terms. The Board of Directors, may alter and vary the terms and conditions of 

appointment, including remuneration, in such manner and to such extent as may be mutually agreed with the Secretarial Auditor. 

MNone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the 

resolution at ltem Mo, 5 of the accompanying Notice. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution at Iterm No, 5 of the accompanying MNotice for approval by the Members of the 

Company. 

Iltem Mo.6 of Special Business: 

Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, Managing Director, having Director Identification Number. 06616061 has been Re-appointed by Board 
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of Directors in the meeting held on 26th June 2020 as a Managing Director and approved by shareholders at Annual General 

Meeting of the Company held on 28th Decembear 2020. His term will expire on 04th September 2025 The Board of Directars at 

their meeting held on 25th August 2025 after receiving recommendation from the Nomination and remuneration committee, has 

re-appointed Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva (DIN: 06616061) as Managing Director, subject to approval of the members, for a period of 

five years with effect from 5th September2025 to 4th September 2030. 

Mr. Bhupat Bhai Bhuva, aged 47 with the experience of 30+years, has been the linchpin of Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

throughout its historical voyage since its beginning. He is the chairman and the Managing Director of the company. He looks after 

the day-to-day affairs of the Company related to Administration, Decision Making, Marketing and Sales. He looks after the overall 

working of various segments like lce Cream, Indian Savouries, Milk & Milk Products, Sweets, Frozen Food, Vegetable etc. He also 

holds the post of Recruiter and Financial Manager. All areas, like Human Resource Management, Finance, Accounts, Legal, 

Systems, Energy Production, Market Expansion and Export, have been well administered to make crowning glory for Sheetal 

Cool Products Limited by the eminent personality. 

The remuneration paid to him is in consonance with the remuneration being paid by Companies of similar size in the industry with 

respect to experience of the appeointee. Further, details such as financial performance, export performance of the Company, and 

components of the remuneration package of Directors, are given in Directors' Report as well as Report on Corporate Governance. 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the Special Resclution as set out in this Notice. Except Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, 

being the proposed beneficiary, Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva, Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva and Mr. Dakubhai J Bhuva, no other director or 

Key Managerial Personnel including their relative is concerned and/or interested in this Resolution. 

Item No.7 of Special Business: 

Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva, Whole Time Director, having Director Identification Number. 06616078 has been Re-appointed by Board 

of Directars in the meeting held on 26th June 2020 as a Whole Time Director and approved by shareholders at Annual General 

Meeting of the Company held on 28th December 2020. His term will get expire on 04th September 2025. The Board of Directors at 

their meeting held on 25th August 2025 after receiving recommendation from the Nomination and remuneration committee, has 

re-appeinted Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva (DIM: 06616078) as Whole Time Director, subject to approval of the members, for a period of 

five years with effect from 5th SSeptember2025 to 4th September 2030. 

Dinesh Bhai Bhuva, aged 54, is the Whole Time Director of Sheetal Cool Products Limited and has led the company in undertaking 

various projects of social importance and upliftment. Mr. Dinesh Bhai Bhuva plays a vital role in the progressive journey of the 

company, holding the responsibilities of CSH, New Development, Infrastructure, Human Resource and Parlor Expansion. It is his 

vision, passion and indefatigable energy that has been instrumental in bringing a small Pan and Cold Drink Shop into a profiled 

company. He has 30+ years of experience in conceiving and developing Projects solely in the infrastructure of the company and 

social welfare. His innovative approach on marketing and sales brought out the idea of Cool Parlours, Coaol Points, J'Adore 

Parlours and Smiley parlours of Sheetal Cool Products Limited. 

The remuneration paid to him is in consonance with the remuneration being paid by Companies of similar size in the industry with 

respect to the experience of the appointee. Further, details such as financial performance, export performance of the Company, 

and components of the remuneration package of Directors, are given in the Directors' Report as well as the Report on Corporate 

Governance. 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the Special Resolution as set out in this Notice. Except Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva, 

being the proposed beneficiary, Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva and Mr, Dakubhai J Bhuva, no other director or 

Key Managerial Personnel including their relative is concerned andfor interested in this Resolution. 

ltem Mo.8 of Special Business: 

Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva, Whole Time Director, having Director |dentification Mumber, 06616086 has been Re-appointed by Board 

of Directars in the meeting held on 26th June 2020 as a Whole Time Director and approved by shareholders at Annual General 

Meeting of the Company held on 28th December 2020. His term will get expire on 04th September 2025. The Board of Directors at 

their meeting held on 25th August 2025 after receiving recommendation from the Momination and remuneration committee, has 

re-appeinted Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva (DIN. 066168086) as Whole Time Director, subject to approval of the members, for a period of 

five years with effect from 5th September2025 to 4th September 2030. 

Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva, aged 45 with the experience of 23+years, is the Whole Time Director of Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

having excellent skills in executing practical solutions since its beginning. He looks after Production Department, Purchase and 
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coordinates multi-talented workers of various segments like Ice Cream, Indian Savouries, Milk & Milk Products, Sweets, Frozen 

Food, Vegetable etc. He looks after the offices of Research and Development, the Logistics, Recruitment, QA/QC and the 

Technical Head. 

The remuneration paid to him is in consonance with the remuneration being paid by Companies of similar size in the industry with 

respect to experience of the appointes. 

The Beard of Directors recommend passing of the Special Resolution as set outin this Motice, 

Except Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva, being the proposed beneficiary, Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva and Mr. 

Dakubhai J Bhuva no other director or Key Managerial Personnel including their relative is concerned and/or imterested in this 

Resolution. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Sd/- 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Date: August 25, 2025 Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Amreli [DIN: 0BE16061] 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
TO 
THE MEMBERS, 

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the 12th Annual Report on the performance of the Company together with the Audited 

Financial Statements for the FinancialYear ('FY') ended March 31, 2025. 

1. Financial Results: [Amount Lacs] 

PARTICILARS Year Ended Year Ended 

31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

Revenue from Operations 32130.58 35270.82 

EBITDA 3699 .85 4627 .37 

Less: Depreciation 793.73 916.66 

Finance Costs 656.01 889.77 

Profit / (Loss) before tax 2250.11 2820.94 

Tax expenses 593.23 T36.86 

Profit /{Loss) after tax 1656.88 2084.08 

2. State of the Company’s Affairs: 

With consistent performance and sheer dedication, the Gompany was stable in performance. Not only, the Company was 

able to continue the momentum of earning profit by reaching the bottom-line profits of Rs. 2250.11 Lakhs as compared to 

Rs.2820.94 Lakhs in the previous financial year. 

The Revenue from Operations for FY 2024-25 was Rs. 32,130.58 Lacs and reported a profit after tax for FY 2024-25 of Rs 

1,656.88 Lacs in comparison with a Profit after tax of Rs.2,084 .08 Lacs for FY 2023-24. 

3. Dividend and Transfer to Reserves: 

In order to plough back resources, your directors do not recommend any payment of dividend for the financial year. 

Furtherthe Company has not transferred any amount to Reserves during the year. 

4. Share Capital: 

The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025, is Rs. 10,50,00,000/- comprising 1,05,00,000 

Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each. We would like to inform our shareholders that there is no change in the paid-up equity 

capital of the Company during FY 2024-25. 

5. Employees Stock Options Scheme: 

During the year, your company has not issued any shares under the Employees Stock Options Scheme to its employees. 

6. Credit Rating: 

During the year under review the Company has received following credit rating: 

Facilities Ratings Remarks 

Cash Credit CRISIL BBB/Stable Assigned 

Proposed Fund Based Bank Limits CRISIL BBB/Stable Assigned 

Term Loan CRISIL EBB/Stable Assigned 

7. Management Discussion & Analysis: 

Interms of Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Listing Regulations, 2015 read with other applicable provisions, the detailed review 

of the operations, performance and outlook of the Company and its business is given in the Management's Discussion 

and Analysis Report (MDA) which forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure A and is incorporated herein by 

reference and forms an integral part of this report. 

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT: 

In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a Report on “Corparate 

Governance”is attached as an Annexure B and forms part of this report. 
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10. 

11. 

CHANGE INTHE NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There is no change in the nature of business, of the 

Company during the financial year under review. 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls 

and compliance systems established and 

maintained by the Company, the work performed by 

the internal, statutory, secretarial auditors and 

external consultants including the audit of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting by the 

statutory auditors and the reviews performed by 

management and the relevant board committees, 

including the audit committee, the Board is of the 

opinion that the Company's internal financial contrals 

were adequate and effective during FY 2024-25. 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of 

Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 

confirm that: 

i In the preparation of the annual accounts, 

the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed and there are no material 

departures. 

ii. They have selected such accounting 

policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the financial year and 

of the loss of the Company for that period. 

18 They have taken proper and sufficient care 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and Detecting 

Fraud and other irregularities. 

iv. They have prepared the annual accounts on 

a going concern basis. 

V. They have laid down internal financial 

controls to be followed by the Company and 

such internal financial controls are adequate 

and operating effectively. 

vi. They have devised proper systems to 

ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are 

adequate and operating effectively. 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

In accordance with the requirements of the Act and 

the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. 

12. 

Sanjaybhai Bhuva, (DIN: 06616078) retires by 

rotation and being eligible. offers himself for re- 

appointment. Relevant resolutions (Ordinary or 

Special, as applicable) seeking shareholders’ 

approval forms part of the Notice of ensuing AGM. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, 

the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as on 

March 31, 2025, are: 

Mr.Bhupat bhai Bhuva - Managing Director 
(DIM: 08616061) 

-Whole time Director 
(DIM: 08616088) 

-Whaole time Director 
(DIM: 06616078) 

-Chief Financial Officer 
-Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer 

Number of Meetings of the Board: 

Wr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva 

Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva 

Ms. Jinal Maria 
Mr. Bharat P Trivedi 

Seven (7) meetings of the Board were held during the 

year under review. For details of meetings of the 

Board, please refer to the Corporate Governance 

Report as Annexure B, which forms a part of the 

Annual Report. 

Performance Evaluation of Board, Committee & 

Directors: 

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual 

evaluation of its own performance, board 

committees, and individual Directors pursuant to the 

provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the 

Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on 

the basis of criteria such as the Board Composition 

and Structure; Degree of fulfillment of key 

rasponsibilities towards stakeholders (by way of 

monitoring corporate governance practices, 

participation in the long- term strategic planning, 

etc.); Effectiveness of board processes, information 

and functioning, etc.; Extent of co-ordination and 

cohesiveness between the Board and its 

Committees; and Quality of relationship between 

Board Members and the Management. 

The performance of the committees was evaluated 

by the Board after seeking input from the committee 

members based on criteria such as the composition 

of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, 

etc. 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, 

performance of Non-Independent Directors, the 

board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company 

was evaluated, considering the work/contribution of 

Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 
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13. 

14. 

15. 

The Board and the NRC reviewed the performance of 

individual Directors based on criteria such as the 

contribution ofthe individual Director to the Board 

and commitiee meetings like preparedness on the 

issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive 

contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. 

The above criteria are broadly based on the 

Guidance MNote on Board Evaluation issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 

5, 2017. At the Board Meeting that followed the 

meeting of the Independent Directors and meeting of 

MRC, the performance of the Board, its committees, 

and individual directors was also discussed, 

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors 

was done by the entire Board, excluding the 

independent director baing evaluated. The Directors 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation 

process. 

Vigil Mechanism: 

The Company has established the necessary vigil 

mechanism for directors and employees in 

confirmation with Section 177(9) of the Act and 

Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, to report 

concerns about unethical behavior. The details of the 

policy are also available on www.scplco.com. 

Internal Financial Controls: 

The Company has an internal financial control 

system commensurate with the size and scale of its 

operations and the same has been operating 

effectively. The Internal Auditor evaluates the efficacy 

and adequacy of internal control system, accounting 

procedures and policies adopted by the Company for 

efficient conduct of its business, adherence to 

Company's policies, safeguarding of Company's 

assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors 

and timely preparation of reliable financial 

information etc. Based on the report of internal audit 

function, process owners undertake corrective 

action in their respective areas and thereby 

strengthen the controls. Significant audit 

observations and corrective actions thereon were 

presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

Audit Committee: 

The details including the composition of the Audit 

Committee, Meeting details, attendance at the 

Meetings and terms of reference are included in the 

Corporate Governance Report as Annexure B, 

which forms a part of the Annual Report, 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

Statutory Auditors: 

At the 7th AGM held on December 28, 2020, the 

Members approved appointment of M's. H.BE. Kalaria 

& Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration Mo, 104571W) as Statutory Auditors of 

the Company to hold office for a period of five years 

from the conclusion of the Tth Annual General 

Meeting till the conclusion of the 12th Annual 

General Meeting to be held in the year 2025, further 

they have been Re-appointed by the Board of 

Director for tenure of next 5 years subject to approval 

of shareholders till 17th Annual General meeting to 

be held for Financial Year 2029-2030. 

Corporate Soclal Responsibility: 

Your Company has always laid emphasis on 

progress with social commitment. We believe 

strongly in our core values of empowerment and 

bettermeant of not only the employees but also our 

communities. The Company has developed the 

policy on Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR" 

and was recommended by the CSR Committee and 

approved by the Board and the same can be 

accessed on the Company' s website at 

https://www.scplco.com/wp- 

content/uploads/2023/08/corporate-social- 

responsibility-policy. pdf. 

The brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company 

and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on 

CSR activities during the year under review are set 

out in Annexure D of this report in the format 

prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021. 

Auditor's Report and Secretarial Audit Report: 

The Statutory Auditor's Report and the Secretarial 

Auditor's Report are part of this annual report. 

Secretarial Auditor's Report is attached to this report 

as Annexure E. 

In the Statutory Auditors’ Report on the financial 

statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended on 31st March 2025, there is no 

Qualified/Adverse Opinion from Statutory Auditor 

during the financial year under review. 

Risk Management: 

The Company has formulated the Risk Management 

Policy in order to safeguard the organization from 
various risks through timely actions. It is designed to 

mitigate the risk in order to minimize the impact of the 

risk on the Business. The Management is regularly 

reviewing the risk and is taking appropriate steps to 
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20. 

21. 

23. 

mitigate the risk. 

In the opinion of the Board there has been no 

identification of an element of risk that may threaten 

the existence of the Company. 
Company Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or 

Investments: 

During the year, your Company has not given any 

loans, provided guarantees or made investments in 

terms of the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, 

Related Party Transactions: 

In line with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI 

Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a 

Palicy on Related Party Transactions and the same 

can be accessed on the Company’s website at 

https://www.scplco.com/wWp - 

content/uploads/2023/07/RELATED-FART Y- 

TRAMSACTIONS-RTP-POLICY. pdf, 

During the year under review, all Related Party 

Transactions that were entered into were in the 

Ordinary Course of Business and at Arms' Length 

Basis. All transactions entered with related parties 

were approved by the Audit Committes. 

Further in FY 2024-25, there were no material 

transactions of the Company with any of its related 

parties. Therefore, the disclosure of Related Party 

Transactions as required under Section 134({3)(h) of 

the Act in Form AQC-2 is not applicable to the 

Company for FY 2024-25 and hence the same is not 

provided. 

Annual Return: 

In line with the requirement of the Companies 

(Amendment) Act, 2017, effective from 31st July 

2018, the extract of annual return is no longer 

required to be part of the Board Report. However, for 

the Compliance of Conditions of Section 92 and 

Section 134, draft copy of the Annual Return for the 

financial year ended 31st March 2025 and other 

policies of the Company shall be placed on the 

Company's website https:/f'www.scplco.com/wp- 

content/uploads/2023/08/mgt-7-fy-2024-2025 pdf. 

Particulars of Employees: 

Details Pertaining to remuneration and other details 

as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies 

Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, is attached as Annexure F of this report. 

24. 

25, 

27, 

Deposits from Public: 

During the year under review, your Company has not 

accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 

73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re- 

enactment(s) for the time being in force). 

Material changes and commitment affecting the 

financial position of the Company: 

There is no material change and commitment which 

has occurred between the end of the financial year 

and the date of the report which affects the financial 

position of the Company. 

Details of significant and material orders passed 

by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the 
going concern status and company’s operations 

in future. 

During the year under review, no significant material 

orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the 

Company's operations. 

Cost Auditors: 

In terms of Section 148 of the Act, the Company is 

required to hawve the audit of its cost records 

conducted by a Cost Accountant. In this connection, 

the Board of Directors of the Company has on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved 

the appointment of M/s. Tadhani & Co. as the cost 

auditors of the Company for the year ending 31st 

March 2026. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) 

of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable 

to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit 

Committee and approved by the Board has to be 

ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, 

appropriate resolution forms part of the Notice 

convening the AGM. M/s. Tadhani & Co. have vast 

experience in the field of cost audit and have been 

conducting the audit of the cost records of the 

Company for the past several years. 

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS: 

The Directors of the Company to the best of their 

knowledge and belief state that the Company has 

maintained adequate Cost records as required to be 

maintained by the Company under the provisions of 

Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the relevant Rules framed thereunder. 
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20. 

21, 

mitigate the risk. 

In the opinion of the Board there has been no identification of an element of risk that may threaten the existence of the 

Company. 
Company Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments: 

During the year, your Company has not given any loans, provided guarantees or made investments in terms of the 

provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Related Party Transactions: 

In line with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a Policy on 

(1) | The steps taken or impact on conservationof | The Company has taken measures and applied strict control 

energy, systems to monitor day o day power consumption, to endeavor 
to ensure the optimal use of energy with minimum extent 
possible wastage as far as possible. The day-to-day 
consumption is monitored, and various ways and means are 
adopted to reduce the power consumption as an effort to save 

energy. 

(i) | The steps taken by the company for utilizing | Company has Incorporated the Solar panel energy to produce 
alternate sources of energy; the Electricity in an alternate manner. 

(i) The capital investment on energy | The Company has established ground mounted 1.2 MW solar 

conservation equipment photovoltaic power project at Tehsil, Chittal in Amrel district and 

1.5 MW and 1.25 MW windmills at Kutch which have been 
generating electricity since April 01, 2021, By installing this 

solar and wind power plant company saved 66,66,038 units in 

electricity bill by captive consumption of such units. 

(B) Technology Absorption: 

(1) | The efforts made towards technology Company has always been making best effort towards 
absorption, technology absorption, adaptation, and innovation to improve 

the quality, 

(i) | the benefits derived like product It improves the quality of company’s products being 
improvement, cost reduction, product manufactured and reduces the cost of production. 

development or import substitution 

(iii}) | in case of imported technology (imported MLA. 
during the last three years reckoned from 

the beginning of the financial year:- 

(a) the details of technology imported: MN.A. 

(b) the year of import M.A. 

© whether the technology been fully absorbed MN.A. 

id) if not fully absorbed, areas where M.A. 

absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof; 

{iv) | the expenditure incurred on Research and MIL 
Development 

{v) | Foreign Exchange Earning: MIL 
Foreign Exchange Outgo: NIL 
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a1. 

32. 

35. 

Subsidiary, JointVenture and Associate Company: 

There has been no company or Institution which became or ceased to be Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company 

during the reporting pericd. 

Compliance of Secretarial Standard: 

Your Company has complied with all Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (1C51) 

and approved by Central Government fram time to time. 

POLICY ON DIRECTORS'APPOINTMENT AND POLICY ON REMUNERATION: 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the policy on appointment of Board Members and policy on 

remuneration of the Directors, KMPs and other employees is attached as Annexure C to this report. 

Explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer 

made statutory auditor or secretarial auditor: 

The management has noted the Secretarial Auditor's report qualification regarding registration of charge for borrowing 

made from Axis Bank Where in management would like to clarify that Company hasn't filed the CHG-1 in prescribed time 

due to non-cooperation from earlier Banker Bank of Baroda. 

Other Disclosures: 

Few statutory disclosures the Company is required to do are as under: 

The Company has not paid any commission to any of its Directors and hence, the provision of disclosure of 

commission paid to any Director as mentioned in Section 197 (14) is not applicable. 

There has been no instance of any revision in the Board's Report or the financial statement under Section 131(1) 

of the Act. 

Mo application made, or any proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

All the recommendations made by the Audit Commitiee were accepted by the Board of Directors. 

The Company does not have any scheme ar provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees/ 

Directors or by trustees for the benefit of employees/ Directors. 

Mo significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 

concern status and Company’s aperations in future. 

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards 

notified under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the Management to make estimates 

and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) 

and the reported income and expenses during the year, 

There are no unclaimed dividends lies with the company required to be transferred into the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund. 

There is no fraud reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those which are 

reportable to the Central Government:]. 

There are noinstances with respect to the time of one-time settlement with the Banks or Financial Institutions. 

The company has complied with the provisions of Maternity Benefit Acts. 

INSURAMNCE: 

The properties and assets of the Company are adequately insured. 
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36. Acknowledgment: 

The Board thanks the Company's distributors, dealers, stockiest, customers, vendors, investors, banks, employees and 

other stakeholders for their continuous support. 

The Board also thanks the Government of India, Governmeants of various states in India and concerned Government 

departments and agencies for their co-operation. 

The Directors appreciate and value the contribution made by all our employees and their families and the contribution 

made by every other member of the SCPL family for making the Company what itis. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Sd/- 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Date: August 25, 2025 Chairman & Managing Director 
Place: Amreli [DIN: 06616061] 
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ANNEXURE A 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

The statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” describe the Company's objectives, projections, 

expectations, estimates or forecasts which may be “forward-looking statements™ within the meaning of the applicable 
laws and regulations. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from those expressed orimplied therein due to 

risks and uncertainties. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations, inter alia, include global and 

domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices of finished goods, input availability and prices, changes 
in government regulations, tax laws, economic, political developments within the country and other factors such as 
litigations and industrial relations. 

COMPANY OVERVIEW: 

Sheetal Cool Products Limited is a leading player in the Indian food industry, with a strong presence across more than 10 
major states of India, including Gujarat, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, Jammu & Kashmir, Punjab, 
Himachal Pradesh, Chhattisgarh, Telangana, West Bengal, Sikkim, Odisha, and Uttar Pradesh. Beyond domestic 

operations, the company has expanded its footprint to over 15 international markets, such as the USA, Japan, Australia, 

Hong Kong, UAE (Dubai), Saudi Arabia, Bahrain, Kuwait, Qatar, Zambia, Congo, South Korea, Vietnam, Mauritius, and 

Bhutan, amang others. 

The company is certified with globally recognized standards, including BRCGS (Brand Reputation Compliance for 
Global Standards), FSMA (Food Safety Modernization Act), and EIC (Export Inspection Council), along with FSSAL 1SO 
22000:2018, and 150 9001:2015, These certifications underscore Sheetal's commitment to quality and safety in 
manufacturing across seven major categories of food products. 

Recognized for its rapid growth and excellence, Sheetal has been featured by The Economic Timeas among the Top 150 

Fastest Growing Companies in India. Furthermore, it is listed in the Top 500 High-Growth Companies of Asia-Pacific 
2021, a ranking curated by The Financial Times, Nikkei, and Statista 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT GLOBAL ECONOMY': 

According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF)1 |, global growth at 3.3 per cent in 2024 (3.5 per cent a year ago) was 

below the historical average (2000-19) of 3.7 per cent, owing to structural challenges like weak investment, slow 

productivity growth and high debt levels. Moreover, the pace of economic activity was impacted by moderation in 
economic growth in some Asian and Eurapean economies, protracted geopolitical tensions and sluggish recovery in 
China's consumption demand and property market. Global inflation eased to 5.7 per cent in 2024 from 6.6 per cent in 

2023, reflecting the impact of gradual monetary tightening and the easing of supply chain constraints, but still remained 
above pre-pandemic levels, largely driven by persistent price pressures in the services sector. 

Global financial conditions remained largely accommodative in major AEs, reflecting the shift towards less restrictive 
policy to boost economic activity as inflation started gradually converging to the target levels. After softening in the first 
half of 2024, sovereign bond yields rose again in AEs during the second half of the year amid renewed inflation concerns 
and divergent monetary policy trajectories of major central banks. Sovereign bond yields in emerging market and 
developing economies (EMDEs) generally moderated amidst the global rate cut cycle. The US dollar remained strong 
throughout the year with consequent downward pressures on a number of AE and EME currencies. Global eqguity 
markets inched up higher notwithstanding intermittent volatility driven by concerns over stretched valuations, divergent 
monetary policies, slower pace of disinflation, geopolitical risks and uncertainty on the evolution of tariff policies. 

INDIAM ECOMOMY": 

Against the backdrop of a steady global growth amidst multiple headwinds, the Indian economy remained resilient during 

2024- 25, supported by robust macroeconomic fundamentals, proactive policy measures and sustained government 

capital expenditure. Although real gross domestic product (GDP)3 growth moderated to 6.5 per cent in 2024-25 India 
remained the fastest growing major economy. Economic activity was supported by an improvement in consumption 

demand and net exports on the expenditure side, and buoyant services sector and recovery in agricultural production on 
the supply side. 

Growth in gross value added (GVA) in the agriculture and allied sector in 2024-25 stood at 4.6 per cent as comparead with 
2.7 per cent a year ago, driven by record foodgrains production aided by adequate reservoir levels and favourable 

weather conditions. Horticulture sector also performed better than last year, driven by higher production of onion and 

potato. The government has initiated Digital Agriculture Mission to bring innovative farmer-centric digital services, which 

will enable transparent, efficient, easier and faster service delivery to the farmers. This will also enhance productivity and 

sustainability of India's agriculture sector. Moreover, the government is promoting quality seed production and 
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distribution through various schemes to enhance climate-resilience and improve crop yield in the agriculture sector. 

{Source: https:/fm.rbi.org.in/Scripts/AnnualReportPublications.aspx7ld=1402) 
Industry Structure and developments. 

Overview of Global Dairy Industry Market Overview: 

“Dairy Market: The global dairy market size reached USD 891.5 Billion in 2024, Looking forward, IMARC Group expects 
the market to reach USD 1,505.8 Billion by 2033, exhibiting a growth rate (CAGR) of 4.75% during 2025-2033. The rapid 
urbanization, increasing awareness about health and nutrition, significant technological advancements, rising popularity 
of dairy-based snacking, shifting dietary preferences and favorable government policies and regulations are some of the 
major factors propelling the market. As the global population continues to grow, so does the demand for essential 
nutrients, such as calcium and protein, which are abundantly found in dairy products. For example, as per the U.S. 
Census Bureau, after a historically low rate of change between 2020 and 2021, the US resident population increased by 
0.4%, or 1,256,003, to 333,287,557 in 2022. Additionally, more people are transitioning from traditional diets to modern 

ones thatinclude processed foods and dairy products, which is bolstering the market growth. 

With more and more people moving to cities for opportunities and leading busy lifestyles, convenience has become a key 
factor in food choices. According to United Mations Conference on Trade and Development (LUNCTAD), the share of 
urban population is projected fo increase to 56.9% in 2022. It is higher in the developed parts (79.7%:) than in the 
developing regions (52.3%). Besides this, dairy companies have capitalized on this trend by offering a wide range of 
packaged, ready-to-eat (RTE), and on-the-go dairy options. Urban consumers are increasingly looking for quick and 

nutritious meals, making dairy an aftractive choice due to its nutritional content and versatility in various recipes. As a 

result, the urbanization trend is propelling the future of global dairy market. 

There has been an increase in the demand for ready-to-eat (RTE) products, such as butter, frozen desserts, milk powder, 

and yogurt, which is contributing to the market growth. Subsequently, evolving food habits have further led to the 

establishment of fast-food chains and quick service restaurants (QSR), wherein different varieties of cheese, condensed 
milk, buttermilk, and sour milk are employed as major ingradients. Moreover, the rising availability of lavored milk and ice 
creams in innovative flavors, such as chocolate, strawberry, vanilla, and almond, is acting as a growth-inducing factor. 
Apart from this, key players in developing regions are consistently investing in impraving the milk procurement netwaork 

and promating domestic dairy farming practices, which is creating a positive outlook for the market. In addition to this, the 
advent of modern retail facilities and improvement in cold chain logistics, particularly in emerging economies, are further 

supporting the market growth. A significant increase in research and development (R&D) activities in the dairy industry to 
introduce novel product variants and expand existing product portfolios is fueling the market growth further. Other factors, 
such as rising health concerns, increasing population and rapid urbanization and industrialization, are also driving the 
glabal dairy market growth. 

Source:https://www.imarcgroup.com/global-dairy-market#: - text=The%20global% 20dairy%20market%20size, 
4.95%25%20during%202024%202032, 

Overview of Dairy Industry in India: 

With over 1.3 billion people, there is a massive consumer base for dairy products in India. As the population continues to 

rise, the demand for essential nutrients provided by dairy products also accelerates. Besides this, the agricultural nature 

of the country ensures a significant presence of livestock, particularly cows and buffaloes. This abundance of milk- 
producing animals facilitates a steady supply of raw milk for dairy processing and production. Additionally, the Indian 

dairy industry has witnessed significant moedernization and infrastructure development, which has enhanced milk 
eollection, processing, and distribution capabilities. This has made dairy products more accessible to consumers across 

urban and rural areas, driving the global dairy market ocutlook. Moreover, the Government of India is providing various 

schemes, subsidies, and incentives related to dairy, which is supporting the global dairy market growth. For example, the 

Government of India launched National Programme for Dairy Development (NPDD) scheme to improve the quality of 

milk and its products and increase share of organized milk procurement. The scheme will be implemented in India for the 

period of five year from 2021-22 to 2025-26. 

KEY BUSINESS SEGMENTS: 

To balance seasonal demand, minimize off-season impact, and optimally utilize power and manpower, the company has 
diversified into multiple product segments. This strategic diversification enhanced production efficiency, and a broader 
consumer base. 

The key diversified segments include: 

Ilce Cream Products 

Made from pure milk (notfrozen desserts), offering a rich and authentic taste. Product varieties include: 
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Cups 
Kulfi 
Candy & Cones 
MNovelties 
Cakes & Pastries 
Family Packs and Party Packs 

MNamkeen Products 

*«
 

8 
8 

2 
& 

@ 

A wide range of products, including wafers, fryums, and other savory snacks, known for taste, quality, and hygiene 

Milk & Milk Products 

Comprising both essential and premium products: 

Milk, Buttermilk, and Curd 
. Ghee, Paneer, Butter, and Flavored Milk 

Bakery Products 

Freshly baked items such as: 

. Bread, Khari, Rusk, and a range of Cookies 

Sweets 

Traditional Indian sweets including: 

. Gulab Jamun, Rasgulla, Mango Ras, Basundi, and Shrikhand 

Ready-to-Eat Products 

Convenient and delicious frozen food offerings like: 

. Parathas, Naan, Samosa, Tikki, and assorted Pizzas 

Ready-to-Cook Products 

Frozen essentials for quick meal preparation: 

. Green peas, Sweet Corn, CutVegetables etc 

By offering a wide range of preducts, the company can tap into diverse consumer preferences and cater to various market 
segments. This strategy strengthens brand presence across multiple categories, reducing dependency on a single 
product line. Ultimately, diversification enhances business stability, market competitiveness, and long-term profitability. 

BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES AND OUTLOOKS: 

The Budget 2022-23 seeks to lay the foundation of the Indian economy over the "Amrit Kaal' period of the next 25 years 

leading to 100 years of independence in 2047. The government is emphasizing the role of PM Gati Shakti, Inclusive 

Developmant, Productivity Enhancement & Investment, Sunrise Opportunities, Energy Transition and Climate Action, as 

well as Financing of Investments, 

India is one of the fastest growing economies globally and the Government of India is determined to make it a five trillion 
economy by 2025, A growing working population and rapid urbanization will drive strong consumption growth, boosting 
demand for dairy and dairy products in India. Product innovation is always needed as consumers not only prefer safe 
ingredients and additives but also useful ones. We creates opportunities mainly in product innovation, specialized 

products, and product extensions for the various existing food processors. Consumers have become aggressive in 

demanding better, safer, and convenient food products and are willing to pay a higher price for health and convenience. 

The performance of the company is expected to improve with stabilized economic situation in India and across the globe. 
We expect this trend to continue at least in the foreseeable future. Hence, the Company does not see any medium to long 
term risks in the company's ability to continue as a going concern and in meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. 

CHALLENGES/THREATS: 

Apart from competition as a major challenge, the threat of uneven natural conditions has persisted over the last 2 to 3 
years. Early monsocon and unseasonal rainfall have adversely impacted, and at times slowed down, the company's top 
line during this period. However, the company has effectively managed to maintain its revenue levels with only a marginal 
decline despite these unfavorable conditions. 
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Despite these formidable obstacles, our commitment to delivering the highest-quality products at exceptionally 
competitive prices remains unwavering. We are well-prepared to confront and overcome these challenges as we 

continue our journey forward. 

Segment - wise or product —wise performance: 

Segment Reporting as definedin Ind AS 108 is not applicable since the Company operates in only one segment. 

Riskand Concern 

Risk and concerns exist in every industry, the key lies in how effectively a company prepares and implements strategic 
planning to mitigate them. Continuous monitoring, proactive risk assessment, and adaptive measuras are essential to 

ensure business resilience and sustainable growth. 

1.Price Fluctuation of Raw & Packing Materials 

The Company is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of key raw materials and packaging materials, which can 

significantly impact production costs and overall profitability. Factors such as global commaodity trends, supply-demand 
imbalances, and changes in vendaor pricing policies contribute to this volatility. 

2.Change in Glimate Conditions 

Unpredictable weather patterns and climate changes is always been a concern factor. Such conditions can disrupt 

supply chains and also alter consumer demand patterns, posing a risk to business stability. 

3. Competition from Larger and Local Players 

The Company operates in a highly competitive market with numerous established and local players offering similar 
products. This creates pricing pressure and the possibility of reduced market share if differentiation and brand positioning 
are not effectively maintained. 

Mitigation Approach: 

The Company continuously monitors these risks and adopts strategies such as backward integration to manage price 
fluctuation and bulk purchase well before the season to avoid scarcity and price hikes, a diversified portfolio to manage 
climate conditions, and a consistent approach in providing quality products at fair prices along with product innovation to 
beat competition 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM ANDTHEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has in place an adequate system of internal control commensurate with its size and nature of business. 

The system provides reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operational information, complying with 

applicable statutes, safeqguarding of assets of the Company and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. 

The Company has availed the services of independent professional firm for Internal Audit, which checks the 

effectiveness of the internal controls with an objective to provide an independent, objective, and reasonable assurance of 

the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk management, control, and governance processes. The scope and 

authority of the Internal Audit activity are approved by the Audit Committee. Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit 
Committee of Board. Audit Committee periodically reviews the Internal Audit Reports and issues guidance and advice. 

The Audit Committee also seeks the views/opinions of statutory auditors on the adequacy of the internal contral systems 

in the Company. Minutes of the Audit Committea ara put up to the Board of Directors. The Company's Audit Committes 

reviews adherence to internal control systems, internal audit reports and legal compliances, This committee reviews all 

the results of the Company and recommends the same to the Board forits approval. 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS INHUMAN RESOURCES: 

COur people are our strongest asset. The Company invests in building best-in-class teams, led by exceptional 
professionals. Over the years, the Company has nurtured a meritocratic, empowering, and caring culture that 

encourages excellence. The Company encourages the development of talent by providing its people with opportunities to 
sharpen their capabilities, encouraging inmovation, lateral thinking, and developing multiple skills. Through this 

approach, it prepares its people for future leadership roles. 

The management is focused on a transformational Human Resources Strategy, which supports the constant 

reinforcement of our competitive advantage. During the year, the Company's industrial relations remained cordial with its 

employees. 
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The Company has 891 employees as of the closure of the Financial Year. 

L. PROGRESS DURINGTHEYEAR: 

In the domestic market, the company expanded its presence by adding new states and strengthening its sales force on a 
state-wise basis. The company also increased its focus on essential products such as milk and milk-based products, 
where there is significant potential to boost the top line. 

In the lce Cream and Namkeen segments, the company developed new products and implemented strategic changes, 
which will contribute to the growth intop line in the coming year. Although the top line was impacted due to natural factors, 
the company is making every effort to achieve growth inthe coming years. 

On the export front, the company enhanced its global footprint by adding more countries, resulting in an increase in the 
top line compared to the previous year. 

During the year, the company planned a 4.9 MW solar project near Amreli, which is scheduled to commence operations 
in FY 2025—-26. This initiative will help reduce electricity costs and positively impact profitability, 

Additionally, to improve operational efficiency and ease of doing business, the company has decided to implement an 
ERP system to synchronize all departments on a single platform. Implementation of the ERP system is expected to begin 
inFY 2025-26. 

M. Financial Performance: 

Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance is discussed in the main part of the Report. 

Details of Key Financial Ratio are given below; 

Details of 
Ratios 2024-2025 | 2023-2024 | Change % Significant Change 

Current Ratio (In times) 1.87 1.95 0.69% - 

Debt-Equity Ratio (In times) 0.57 0.73 -21,39% - 

Inventory Turnover Ratio {In times) 1.55 1.63 -4.49% - 

Debtors’ turnover ratio (In times) 6.73 13.27 -49.30% Mentioned below 

Interest Coverage Ratio (In times) 5.64 5.20 B.46% - 

Met Profit Ratio 5.16% 5.91 -12.73% - 

Operating Profit Margin 16.87% 16.33% 3.306% & 
Heturn on Met worth 12.64 20.21% -37.45% Mentioned below 

Reason for change for more than 25% 

1. Debtors'turnover ratio 

The primary reason for the increase in the debtors' turnover ratio is that, during the year, the company extended 
the credit period for select debtors with a strong repayment history and long-standing relationships. 
Furthermaore, the company continues to recelive regular payments from these debtors. 

2. Return on Net worth 

Reason For subsequent change in Return on Net worth is due to company has lower profitability during the year 
where as there is a increase in equity fund and repayment of long term finance debt in financial year as compare 
1o previous reporting year. 

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: 

In the preparation of financial statements, there is no treatment different from that prescribed in an Accounting Standard 
has been followed during the financial year under review. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Sd/- 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Date: August 25, 2025 Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Amreli [DIM: 0B616061] 
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ANNEXURE B 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Directors present the Company's Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended on March 31, 2025. 

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

At, Sheetal Cool Products Limited (SCPL), Corporate Governance has been an integral part of the way we are doing our 
business. As a good corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on conscience, 
transparency, fairness, professionalism, and accountability in building confidence of its various stakeholders in it thereby 

paving the way for its long-term success. The Company believes that good Corporate Governance emerges from the 
application of the best and sound management practices and compllance with the laws coupled with adherence to the 

highest standards of transparency and business ethics. 

The Company places great emphasis on values such as empowerment and integrity of its employees, safety of the 

employees and communities surrounding our plant and other locations, The company manages its affairs in a fair manner 
by giving utmost importance to transparency in decision making process, ethical dealings with all, and a pollution-free 
clean anvironment. It is governed by a set of principles, initiatives and management structures that confer an integrated 
vision and a great deal of agility in decision-making. It also employs the best practices, and it prioritizes a long-term 
strategic vision of its businesses and the collective interest, focusing on resulis and meritocracy. The way the Company 
operates is expressed in its Vision and its Values, in its Code of Conduct, and in its Environment, Social and Governance 

Policy & Sustainability Principles. Such elements are the organization's guidelines for its businesses, objectives, and 
challenges. 

The Company has complied with all applicable guidelines & regulations as stipulated by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India pertaining to the Corporate Governance. 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

Composition: 

Presently there are six Directors on Board consisting of following 

1. Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, (DIN: 06616061) Chairman and Managing Director 

2 Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva, (DIN: 06616078) Whaole Time Diractor 

3. | Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva, (DIN: D6616086) Whole Time Director 

4, | Mr. Ajay V Mandanka, (DIN: 07939036) Independent Director 

5. Mrs. Kiran N Gajera, (DIM: 07938020) Independent Director 

6. | Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai, (DIN: 09713219) Independent Director 

The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge, experience and enables the 
Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. The composition of the Board of 
Directors is in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the relevant Rules framed thereunder. 

The composition of the Board, category, the attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings during the year and at the last 
Annual General Meeting and also number of other directorship and other committee Memberships are given below: 

Name of Category Number of Number | Number of Whether | No of 

Directors (Executive/ Directorship® of Board | Membership/ last AGM | Share 

Monexecutive/ | held in other Meetings | Chairmanship of |attended | Held 

Independent) | Company’'s attended | respective or not? 

Board Committee®* (Yes/No) 

Listed Other Memb- | Chairm- 

Com- Com- ership |anship 

pany pany 

Mr, Bhupatbhai D Bhuva PromaterManaging 0 0 7 0 0 es 238800 

Director'Exacutiva 

Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva PromoteriWhiole Time 1] 0 7 ] 0 es 848550 

Directon Exacutive 

Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva Promoter’Whioiz Time 0 0 7 0 0 Yes 1815450 

DirectonExacutive 
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Name of Category Number of Number | Number of Whether | No of 

Directors {Executive/ Directorship® of Board | Membership/ last AGM | Share 

Nonexecutive/ | held in other Meetings | Chairmanship of | attended | Held 
Independent) | Company's Board | attended | respective or not? 

Committesh® (Yes/No) 

Listed Other Memb- | Chairm- 

Com- Com- ership | anship 

pany pany 

Mr, Ajay vV Mandanka Independent! 0 1] T 0 0 Yes il 

Mon-Execuiive 

Mrs, Kiran N Gajera Independent! 0 0 T 0 0 fes il 

Mon-Execuiive 

Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai Independent! 0 0 7 0 0 Yes Ml 

Non-Execuiive 

These numbers exclude the Directorship / Committee Membership held in private limited companies, foreign 

companies, companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

~rCommittee includes the Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the Public Company 

Disclosures pertaining to directors: 

The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 introduced requirement to 

disclose separately the names of the listed entities, where the persons is a director and the category is of directorship. 
The details of all directors are as below: 

SR. | Name of Director Name Company in which he/ Type of Directorship 
No. she is director 

1. | Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuva Sheetal Cool Products Limited Managing Director 

2. Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva Sheetal Cool Products Limited Whole Time Director 

3. | Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva Sheetal Cool Products Limited Whole Tima Diractor 

4. Mr. Ajay V Mandanka Sheetal Cool Products Limited Independent Director 

5. | Mrs. Kiran N Gajera Sheetal Cool Products Limited Independent Director 

6. Mr. Vijaybhai B Desai Sheetal Cool Products Limited Independent Director 

MNo. of Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2024-25 and dates on which held: 

The Board held seven meetings during the Financial Year 2024-25i.e., on: 

SR.No. | Date of Board Meetings Place of Meeting 
1 April 22, 2024 Armreli 

2, May 11, 2024 Amreali 

3. July 15, 2024 Amreli 

4. August 07, 2024 Amreli 

5 MNovember 12, 2024 Amreli 

. December 25, 2024 Armreli 

7. | February 07, 2025 Amreli 

Relationship between Directors: 

Mr. Bhupatbhai D Bhuva, Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva & Mr. Dineshbhai D Bhuva are inter-related as real brothars, 

Familiarization programs and the terms & conditions of appointment of the Independent Directors as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 & Listing Regulations are updated on the Company's website https://scplco.com/wpcontent 

/uploads/2024/08/Familarization-programme_2024-25 pdf. 

No shares or convertible instruments have been held by any non-executive directors. 
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Skills [ expertise / competencies of Directors: 

As per the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company have identified the below mentiened 
skills/expertise / competencies in the context of the business and the sector in which the Company is operating, for the 
Company to function effectively: 

Name of the Director Expertise in specific functional areas 
Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuwva He has expertise in business development, sales promotion, marketing, 

strategy planning, administration and general management. 

Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva He is having expertise in franchise business, corporate relationship 

management, liasioning, external business affairs, corporate social 

responsibility etc. 

Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva He has expertise in production management. He is looking after overall 

production activity with his core team members. He is backbone for 
development of new products. 

Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka He is having experience of packaging management and issues in relation to 
packaging. 

He is having experience of business administration, women empowerment 
Mrs. Kiranben Gajera 

and management. 

Mr. Vijaybhai Desai He has vast Experienc_e in Business Development and Management for 
Trading and Manufacturing. 

Confirmation regarding Independent Directors 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the declaration given by the 
Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board hereby confirms 
that all the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and are 
independent of the managemeni. Further, the Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company 

possess requisite qualifications, experience (including proficiency) and expertise in their respective fields and that they 

hold the highest standards of integrity. 

In terms of Begulation 25(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are 
not aware of any circumstances or situations which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact 

their ability to discharge their duties. 

During the year 2024-25 no independent director of the company has resigned before the expiry of his/her tenure. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Company has an Audit Committee at the Board level with the powers and role that are in accordance with Listing 
Regulation and Companies Act, 2013. 

Terms of Reference: 

The Audit Committee acts on the terms of reference given by the Board pursuant to Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 

18 of the Listing Regulations. The Committee acts as a link between the Management, the Statutory Auditors, the Internal 
Auditors, the Cost Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and the Board of Directors. The scope of the functioning of the Audit 

Committee is to review, from time to time, the internal control system & procedures and its adequacy. The Committes 
reviews accounting policies and financial reporting system & procedures of the Company. It ensures that the financial 

statements are correct, sufficient and cradible and also such other functions as may be prescribad from time to time by 

Regulatory Authorities. The Audit Committee is vested with the necessary powers to achieve its abjectives. 

Composition: 

The Audit Committee presently consists of Three Mon-executive Directors with a majority of Independent Directors. The 

Audit Committee meets regularly as stipulated in Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulation. The Executive Directors, 

Internal Auditors and the Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the meetings of the Committee. The Secretarial 

Auditors and Cost Auditor are also invited o attend the Audit Committee Meetings, as and when required. 
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Name of the Members & Chairman at the meetings and their attendance during the year: 

The details of members and chairman of the Audit Committee, meetings held during the year and attendance of the 
members are as under: 

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, Six Meetings of the Audit Committee were held i.e., April 22, 2024, 

May 11, 2024, July 15, 2024, November 12, 2024, December 25, 2024, February 07, 2025. 

Sr. No. | Name of Directors Position Meeting attended 

1 Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka Chairman [i] 

2 Mrs. Kiranben Gajera Member [ 

3 Mr. Vijaybhai Desai. Member 6 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

Terms of Reference: 

The terms of reference and Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as per the provisions of Section 
178 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, which includes Devising a policy on Board diversity, 
Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria |laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal, determination of 

qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 

remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees and also formulating performance 
evaluation criteria. The Committee also ensures equity, fairness and consistency. The recommendations of the 
Momination and Remuneration Committee are considered and approved by the Board, subject to the approval of 
Members, wherever necessary. 

The policy is framed by the Momination and Remuneration Commitiee and approved by the Board, which includes 

performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is disclosed on the website of the Company at 

https:/fwww.scplco.comdwp-content/uploads/2023/08/nomination-and-remuneration-policy.pdf. 

Composition: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently consists of Three Non-Executive Directors consisting of Three 
Independent directors. The Chairman is an Independent Mon-Executive Director, 

Mame of the Members & Chairman at the meetings and their attendance during the year: 

The details of members and chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, meetings held during the year 

and altendance of the members are as under: 

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, Four Meeting of the Momination and Remuneration Committes 
were held i.e.on April 22, 2024, July 15, 2024, November 12, 2024, February 07, 2025, 

Sr. No, Name of Directors Position Meeting attended 

1 Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka Chairman 4 

2 Mrs. Kiranben Gajera Member 4 

3 Mr. Vijaybhai Desai, Member 4 

Policy for selection and appointment of Directors and their remuneration: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has adopted a Policy which, inter alia, deals with the manner of 
selection of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration are as under: 

i Appointment criteria and gqualification: The Committee shall identity and ascertain the integrity, qualification, 
expertise and experience of the person for appointment as Director in terms of Diversity Policy of the Board and 
recommend to the Board his / her appointmeant. 

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is 

considered for the appointment of KMP (other than Managing / Whole time Director) or Senior Management 
Personnel. Further, for administrative convenience, the appointment of KMP (other than Managing / Whole time 

Director) or Senior Management, the Managing Director is authorized to identify and appoint a suitable person 

for such position. However, if the need be, the Managing Director may consult the Committee / Board for further 

directions / guidance. 
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e, 

5. 

ii. Remuneration Policy: The Company has a standard remuneration policy for the Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors, which is periodically reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration Commiltee, are as under. 

1 The remuneration / commission / sitting fees, as the case may be, to the Non-Executive / Independent 

Director, shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder for the 

time beingin force or as may be decided by the Committes / Board/ Shareholders. 

4 An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company unless otherwise 
permitted in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulation, as amended from time to time. 

3. Non-Executive Directors are presently paid a sitting fee of Rs. 1,000/- per Board Meeting, Rs. 1,000/- per 
Audit Committee Meeting, Rs. 1,000/- per Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting, Rs. 
1.000/- per Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting and all Meetings wera fixed by the Board of 
Directors from time to time. 

4. The remuneration / compensation / commission, etc., as the case may be, to the Managing /Whole Time 

Director will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. Subject to 

the prior [ post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever 

required and shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder, 

5. Further, the Managing Director of the Company is authorized to decide the remuneration of KMP (other 

than Managing / Whole time Director) and Senior Management, and which shall be decided by the 

Managing Director based on the standard market practice and prevailing HR policies of the Company. 

6. The Board has approved the Momination and Remuneration Policy which has been uploaded on the 

Company's website. 

Details of Remuneration to all the Directors: 

The Details of remuneration/sitting fees paid/payable to the Directors for the financial year 2024-25 are as under: 
(in Rs. Lacs) 

Mame of the Director Salary, Performance Stock Pension Sitting 

allowances, linked Income Option Fees 

Perquisites /Bonus Paid 

and other ICommission 

benefits Paid or Payable 

Executive Directors 

Mr, Bhupatbhal D Bhuva 18.20 - - - - 

Mr. Sanjaybhai D Bhuva 16.80 - - = - 

Mr. Dineshbhai O Bhuva 18.00 - - - - 

Non-Executive Directors 

Mr. Ajaykumar Madanka - - - - 0.21 

Mrs. Kiranben Gajera - - - - 0.21 

Mrs. Vijaybhai Desai g 2 i = 0.21 

Service Contract and Notice Period: The appointment of Bhupatbhai Bhuva managing Director, Sanjaybhai Bhuva 
Whole time director and Dineshbhai Bhuva Whole time Director of the Company is for the 5 years, terminable by notice, 
as prescribed in contract, in writing by either side. The Board of Directors of the Company has authority to decide 
Severance fees payable to Managing Director and Whaole Time Directors. 

There were not any performance-linked incentives paid to Executive Directors. The Company has not formulated any 
scheme for giving any stock options to the employees. Hence no stock options have been granted to the Executive 
Directors during the year under review. Criteria of making payment to Non-executive Director as available on the website 
of the Company i.e., hitps:/fwww.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/Sheetal-criteria-of-making-payments-to- 
neds.pdf. The Company has not made any payment to the non-executive director of the Company except Sitting Fees. 
There are no pecuniary transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the Company during the financial year under 
review except as per reguirements of Accounting Standard 18 are disclosed in the notes to accounts annexed to the 
financial statements. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee, amongst the areas, mentioned in Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations 
and Section 178 of the Act is ensuring expeditious redressal of shareholders’ and investors' complaints like non-receipt of 
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annual report, non-receipt of share certificates upon transfer of shares, dematerialization/re-materialization, transfer/ 

transmission, split'consolidation of shares ete. 

During the financial year ended on 31st March 2025, Four Meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held 
i.e.on April 22, 2024, July 15, 2024, Movember 12, 2024, February 07, 2025. 

The details of Composition of the Committee are as under: 

Sr. No. | Name of Directors Position Meeting attended 

1 Mr. Ajaykumar Mandanka Chairman 4 

2 Mrs. Kiranben Gajera Member 4 

3 Mr. Vijaybhai Desai. Mambar 4 

The details of investors' complaints received and resolved during the Financial Year 2024-25 are as under: 

No. of investor's complaints No. of investor's complaints Investor’s complaints pending 
received during the Year Resolved during the Year at the end of the year 

Mil Mil Mil 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 

As the Company fall under the criteria mentioned in the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however as per sub-section 9 of section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 where the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the functions of such Committee provided under this section shall, 

in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of such company. In the financial year under review the amount to 
be spent by the Company did not exceed Rs. 50 lakhs, However Company voluntarily spent CSR amount above 50 lakhs 
hence the Company has not constituted Corporate Social responsibility committee. 

Independent Directors: 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in the year without 
attendance of the Non-Independent Directors. Independent Directors at their meeting held on 11th May 2024, has 
reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors (Including the Chairman of the Company) and assessed the 
quality, guantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Company and the Management. All the 
independent Directors have attended the meeting. 

All the Independent Directors meet the criteria of Independence as mandated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

a. Location and time where the last three General Meetings were held: 

Financial Year Location AGM Date Time 

2023 -24 AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)/Cther Audio 05/09/2024 12.00 Hours 

Visual Means (QOAVM) 

2022 - 23 AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio 20/09/2023 12.00 Hours 

Visual Means (OAVM) 

2021 -22 AGM through Video Conferencing (VC)/Cther Audio 28/09/2022 11.00 Hours 

Visual Means (OAVM) 
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10. 

Special Resolutions passed in previous three GM: 

Financial Year AGM/EGM Date Special Resolution 

2023-24 05/08/2024 Mo Special Resolution passed. 

202203 29/09/2023 Mo Special Resolution passed. 

20222 28/09/2022 Appointment of Mr. Vijaybhai Desai (Independent Director) for a 

term of 5 years. 

Re-Appointment of Mr. Ajaykumar V Mandanka (Independent 

Director) for a Second term of five years. 

Re-Appointment of Mrs. Kiranben N Gajera {Independent 

Director) for a second term of five years. 

Substitution of Main Object Clause of the Memorandum of 

Association. 

C. Mo Special resolution passed through Postal Ballot last year. 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

A, Financial Results: 

The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Results are published in widely circulated national and local dailies such 
as The Economic Times, Gujarati and English Edition and are also displayed on the website of the Company 
www.scploo.com. 

News Releases, Presentations etc: 

Official News releases, press releases and presentation made to the Analysts, institutional investors etc. (if any) 

are displayed on the website of the Company www.scplco.com and are submitted to the Stock Exchange in 
terms of the requirement of Listing Regulations. 

Website: 

The Company's Website www.scplco.com contains a separate dedicated section namely *Investors' Relations™ 

where the useful information for the Shareholders is available. 

The Management Discussion & Analysis report forms part of the Annual Report, which is posted to all the 
members of the Company. 

DISCLOSURES: 

4. Related Party Transactions: Transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18 

disclosed in the notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements. All the transactions with related parties 

were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis. In terms of Regulation 23 of Listing 

Regulations the Company has started obtaining prior approval of the Audit Committee for entering into any 

transaction with related parties. The Audit Committee granted omnibus approval for certain transactions to be 

entered into with the related parties, during the year, Statements giving details of all related party transactions 
entered into pursuant to the amnibus approval so granted is placed before the Audit Committee and the Board of 

Directors for their approval on a quarterly basis. Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions can be viewed 
at the Company's website at https:/fwww sepleo com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/RELATED-PARTY- 

TRANSACTIONS-RTP-POLICY. pdf These transactions are not likely to have any conflict with the Company's 
interest. 

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock 
Exchanges or SEB| or any statutory authorities or any matter related to capital markets during the last three 
years: No strictures or penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stack Exchanges or by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or by any statutory authority on any matters related to capital 
markets in the last three years. 

Whistleblower Policy (Vigil Mechanism): The Company has formulated its Whistleblower Policy in conformity with 
the Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulation and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, to provide a 
mechanism for directors and employees of the company to approach the Ethics Counselor/ Chairman of the 
Audit Committee of the Company for the purpose of dealing with any instance of fraud and mismanagement, if 
any, and also ensure that whistieblowers are protected from retribution, whether within or outside the 

organization. The Company's Whistleblower Policy is on the Company's website at www.scplco.com. No 
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11. 

12. 

13 

personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee during the year. 

d. Business risk evaluation and managing such risk is an ongoing process within the organization. 

The Board is regularly briefed of risks assessed and the measures adopted by the company to mitigate the risks. 
The Company has laid down the procedures to inform the Board members about the risk assessment and risk 
mitigation mechanism, which is periodically reviewed and reported to the Board of Directors by senior 
executives. 

The Company has ensured commaodity price risk, foreign exchange risk and however it is not engaged in any 

Commodity hedging Activity. 

e. Company has not received any complaint under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the year and no complaint is pending at the year end. 

L. The Company does not have any material subsidiary as at closure of financial year under review, however the 

company's policy of determining material subsidiary is available at hitps:/'www.scpleo.comiwp- content/ 
uploads/2023/08/policy-for-determining-material-subsidiary. pdf. 

g. During the financial year under review the Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or 

qualified institutional placement. 

h. There were no instances where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any Committees of the 
Board during the Financial Year ended 31st March 2025. 

i. Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of 'Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies 
inwhich directors are interasted by name and amount: NA. 

I Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements of Listing 

Regulation: 

Mandatory/ Non-Mandatory Requirements: 

i During the year the Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

il. There is no non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub para 2 to 10 of 

Clause C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, 

iii. The Company has during the financial year ended on 31.03.2025 has partially adopted non-mandatory 

{discretionary) requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, 

v, The Company has generally complied with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 

17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of Sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND IT'S COMMITTEE: 

The management of the Company reviews the risk management processes and implementation of its risk mitigation 

plans. The processes are continuously improved, Also the Company is not mandatorily required to constitute a Risk 

Management Commiltes as per Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 

GENERAL CODE OF CONDUCT: 

The Company has formulated and implemented a General Code of Conduct (copy available on Company's website at 
www.scploo.com) for all its Directors and Senior Management of the Company in compliance with Listing Regulation. All 
the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed compliance with the said Code of Conduct 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. A declaration by the Chairman & Managing Director affirming compliance 
with the said Code of Conduct by Board Members and Senior Management is annexed at the end of the Report and forms 
part of this Report as annexure B2. 

CODES OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDERTRADING: 

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on March 29, 2019, has revised policy for code of practices and procedures 
for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information as per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) 
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14. 

15. 

16. 

17. 

18. 

19. 

Regulations, 2018 and the Rules made thereunder. The said policy can be accessed on the Company's website at 
www.scpleo.com. The necessary preventive actions, including Closure of Trading Window around the time of any price 
sensitive events or information, are taken. All the Designated Persons have given declaration affirming compliance with 

the said Code for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION: 

In accordance with the requirements of Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulation, a certificate from Managing Director and 

Chief Financial Officer of the Company, on the financial statements of the Company was placed before the Board and the 

same is annexed to this Annual Report as Annexure B3. 

DISCLOSURES OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPTS): 

The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Reguirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 have introduced, as a part of 

the “related party disclosure” in the annual report, disclosures of transactions of the listed entity with any person or entity 

belanging to the pramaoter or pramater group which hold{s) 10% or more sharghaolding in the listed entity. There are no 
transactions that occurred inthe FY 2023-24 as defined in the regulations. 

DISCLOSURE OMN AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES REMDERED BY THE AUDITOR: 

The SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 requires disclosing total 

fees paid to auditors for audit and non-audit services to improve transparency. The total fee paid to the Statutory Auditor 

during the FY 2024-25 is as under: 

Fee paidfor audit services: Rs.4.70 Lacs 
Fee paid for Mon-Audit Service: Rs. 1.05 Lacs 
Total fee paid: Rs.5.75 Lacs. 

Secretarial Audit for Reconciliation of Capital: 

As stipulated by SEBI, Practicing Company Secretaries carry out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital 
with Mational Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total 

issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the report there on is submitted to the Stock 

Exchange(s) where shares of the Company are listed. The audit confirms that the total listed and paid-up capital is in 
agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with MSDL and CDSL) and total 
number of shares in physical form. 

Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 
Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

All the Directors of the Company have submitted a declaration stating that they are not debarred or disqualified, by the 
virtue of any order issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other 
Competent or StatutoryAuthority, from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies. Shri Chetan Patel, of 
M/s. Chetan Patel & Associates Practicing Company Secretaries (ICSI Membership MNo. 5188, COP: 3986), has 

submitted a certificate to this effect, which being enclosed at the end of this Report as Annexure B1. 

GEMERAL INFORMATIONTO SHAREHOLDER: 

Day, Date, Time and Venue of Saturday, September 20, 2025, at 12:00 Noon at through two-way 

AGM Video Conferencing ("VC") facility or other audio-visual means 

(‘OAVM') 
Financial Year Financial year of the Company Commeance from 01stApril, 2024 and 

ends on 31stMarch, 2025. 

Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Ltd. (BSE) 

Fhiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001 

National Stock Exchange Limited of India. 

Exchange Plaza, Plot. No C/1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (East) Mumbai 400051 

Listing Fees Company has paid listing fees to BSE Limited and National Stock 

Exchange of India. 

ISIN No. For fully paid shares: INES01Y01019 

Scrip/Stock Code/Symbol BSE: 540757 

NSE: SCPL 

39



Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements 

20. 

21. 

Registered Office Sheetal Cool Products Limited, Plot No. 75 to 81, 

GIDC Estate, Amreli 365601. 

Plant Locations The Company's plant is only located at Plot No. 75-81, G.1.D.C. Estate, 

Amreli, Gujarat 365601, 

Dividend Payment Date MNA. 

Record Date / Cut off Date September 13, 2025 

Compliance Officer Mr. Bharat P. Trivedi 

Email ID: cs & sheetalicecream.com Contact Mo, 9316733077 

Reaqistrar and Share Transfer Agent KFin Technologies Limited. 

Karvy Selenium Tower- B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, 

Manakramguda, Hyderabad, Telangana —500032, Tel:040 — 67162222, 

Email: einward.ris @ karvy.com, Website: www.kfintech.com 

Dematerialization of Shares, Registrar & Transfer Agent & Share Transfer System 

A, Share Transfer System: The Company's shares being in compulsory dematerialization are transferable through 

the depository system, However, shares in the physical form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer 
Agents, In order 1o expedite the process, the Board of Directors has delegated the authority to it to approve the 

share transferftransmission and accordingly, it approves the transferftransmission of shares as and when 

required. The share transfer process is reviewed and noted by the Board/Committee, 

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity; The equity shares of the Company are available in dematerialized 
form with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd., (CDSL). 

Company having 99.99% shareholding in dematerialized form. 

Investors Correspondence: All shareholders' queries are sent to the Company at the Registered Office at Plot 
Mo.75to0 81, GIDC Estate, Amreli 365601. 

Disclosure with respect to Demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account of shares: Not Applicable as 
only 1 share is on Physical mode and will be Dematerialized on the basis of letter of Confirmation if required 
demanded by such shareholder. 

The Company had not issued global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or any 
convertible instruments. 

During the year under Review the company has received the credit rating BBB/Stable (Triple B) with Stable 

Outlook for Long Term facilities and Short-Term facilities of the Company from the CRISIL Ratings Agency. More 
particulars are described in the Director's report. 

Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2025: 

- MNo. of % of Holdings P SN % age No. of shares Shareholdings 

1-500 10523 92.84 705230 6.72 

501-1000 415 3.66 314248 2.99 

1001-2000 209 1.84 313655 2.99 

2001-3000 66 0.58 162278 1.55 

3001-4000 23 0.20 81551 0.78 

4001-5000 16 014 73712 0.70 

5001-10000 33 0.29 230025 219 

10001-20000 24 0.21 316595 3.02 

20001 & Above 26 0.23 B302706 79.07 

Total 11335 100.00 10500000 100.00 
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22, Categories of Shareholding as on 31st March 2025 

Category No. of shares held % of Shareholdings 

Promoters & Promoter's Group 68,87.400 65,59 

MR & MRI's 59,299 0.56 

Body Corporate 3.68.311 3.51 

Resident Individual 29.71,870 28.30 

Alternate Investment Fund 63000 0.60 

Foreign Partfolio Investar 16129 0.15 

Any other 1.33.89 1.28 

TOTAL 1,05,00,000 100 

23. Disclosure of the Compliance with Corporate Governance requirement as specified in Listing Regulation: 

During the Financial Year under review, The Company affirm that all the applicable requirements of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are complied with. 

Date: August 25, 2025 
Place: Amreli 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 
Chairman & Managing Director 

[DIN: 06616061] 
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ANMNEXURE B1 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

{Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule \V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 
The Members of Sheetal Cool Produets Limited 
GIDC PlotNo. 75 to 81, 
Amreli, Gujarat, INDIA 365601 

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Sheetal Cool 

Products Limited having CIN L15205GJ2013PLC077205 and having registered office at GIDC Plot Mo. 75 to 81 Amreli, Gujarat, 

INDIA 365601 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company”), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 

Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors |dentification Number (DIM) 

status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company and its officers, | 

hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 

2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authaority. 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company 

1 Bhupatbhai Dakubhai Bhuva 06616061 14/10/2013 

2 Dinesh Kumar Dakubhai Bhuva 06616078 14/10/2013 

3 Sanjay Dakubhai Bhuva 06616086 14/10/2013 

4 Kiranben Mileshbhai Gajera 07939020 04/09/2017 

5 Ajaykumar Vipulbhai Mandanka 07933036 04/09/2017 

& Vijay Bhagwanbhai Desai 08713219 25/08/2022 

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as 

tothe future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

For Chetan Patel & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 
CS Chetan Patel 

Partner 
Membership Mo: 5188 CF No.: 3986 

Date: August 18, 2025 Peer Review Mo. 6135/2024 
Place: Ahmedabad LIDIN: FOO5188G001027011 
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ANMNEXURE B2 

DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT 

To, 
The Shareholders, 
Affirmation of Compliance with Code of Conduct 

In accardance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, | hereby declare that the 

Board of Directors of the Company has received affirmation on compliance with the Code of Conduct from all the Directors and the 

Senior Management Personnel of the Company, as applicable to them, for the financial year ended 31st March 2025. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Sdr- 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Date: August 25, 2025 Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Amreli [DIN: 06616061] 
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ANMNEXURE B3 

MD/CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION 

Ta 
The Board of Directors, 
SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED 

We the undersigned certify to the Board that: 

{a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, and that 

to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements 
that might be misleading. 

{ii} These staterments together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

(b There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are 

fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct. 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 

evaluated the effectiveness of the internal contral systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 

disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, 

of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee- 

(i) significant changes in internal contral over financial reporting during the year. 

(i) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements; and 

(i) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial 

reporting. 

Sd/- By Order of the Board of Directors 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 
Chairman & Managing Director 
[DIN: 06616061] Sd/- 

Date: August 25, 2025 Jinal Maria 

Place: Amreli Chief Financial Officer 
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ANMNEXURE B4 

CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES/ AUDITORS REGARDING 
COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERMNANCE 

To 

the Shareholders, 
Sheetal Cool Products Limited, 

I, Chetan B, Patel, Partner, Chetan Patel & Associates, Practicing Company Secrelaries, the Secrelarial Auditor of Sheetal Cool 

Products Limited (“the Company"), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for 

the year ended on March 31, 2025, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (1) of regulation 46(2) and para Cand D 

of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments from time to 

time (the Listing Regulations). 

Management's Responsibility 

1. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility 

includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the 

conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

1. My responsibility is limiled lo examining the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for 

ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion 

on the financial statements of the Company. 

2. | have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing 

reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

Opinion 

1. Basad on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to me and 

there presentations provided by the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of 

Schedule of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2025. 

2. | state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Chetan Patel & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 
CS Chetan Patel 

Partner 
Membership Mo: 5188 CF No.: 3986 

Date: August 18, 2025 Peer Review Mo. 6135/2024 
Place: Ahmedabad LIDIN: FOO5188G001027209 
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ANNEXURE C 

POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION, 

Preamble: 

. Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors of every listed company shall constitute the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, to guide the Board on various issues on appointment, evaluate performance, remuneration of 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

Objective: 

The Objective of the Policy is to ensure that: 

. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the 

quality required to run the Company successfully; 

. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between fixed and 

incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its 

goals. 

Definitions: 

The definitions of some of the key terms used in this Policy are given below: 

“Act”means Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder as amended from time to time. 

“Board of Directors” or Board, in relation to the company, means the collective body of the Directors of the Company. 

“Committee” means Momination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by the 

Board. 

“Company” means “Sheetal Cool Products Limited”. 

“Managerial Personnel” means Managerial Personnel or Persons, defined under section 196 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

“Policy™ or "This policy” means Nomination and Bemuneration Policy. 

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and 

includes perguisites as defined under the Income Tax Act, 1961, 

“Independent Director” means a Director referred to in Section 149 (8) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

“Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means; 

a. The Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager or the Whole-time Director; 

b. The Company Secretary and 

c. The Chief Financial Officer 

“Senior Management” shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members of its core management team 

excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below the chief 

enxacutive officer/managing director/whole time director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager in case they 

are not part of the board) and shall specifically include company secretary and chief financial officer. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined in the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreement as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning 

respectively assigned to them therein. 

Constitution of MNomination and Remuneration Committee: 

[ ] The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consist of three or more nonexecutive directors, out of which at least 
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one-half shall be independent director(s), if Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of this 

Committee but shall not chair such Committee. 

L] The Board shall reconstitute the Committee as and when required to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and applicable statutory requirements including the Listing Regulation. 

Role of the Committee: 

The role of the Committee shall include; 

a) Formulate the criteria for determining gualifications, positive attributes or independence of a director and recommend to 

the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 

b} Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board. 

c) Devising a policy on Board diversity. 

d) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for further 

evaluation. 

el |dentify persons who are qualified to become Director and parsons who may be appointed in Key Managerial and Senior 

Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy. 

f) Recommend to the Board, appointment, remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management and removal of 

Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel. 

. The meeting of Committes shall be held at such reqular intervals as may be required to carry out the objectives setout in 

the Policy. 

. The Committee shall have the authority to call such employee (s), senior official(s) and / or externals, as it deems fit. The 

Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the Committee. 

. The Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or, in his absence, any other member of the 

Committee authorised by him, shall be present at the General meetings of the Company, to answer the shareholders 

queries, if any. 

. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall set up a mechanism to carry out its functions and is further 

authorized to delegate any / all of its powers to any of the Directars and /or Officers of the Company, as deemed 

necessary for proper and expeditious execution. 

Appointment of Managerial Personnel, Director, KMP and Senior Management: 

. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the person for 

appointment as Managerial Personnel, Directer or KMP or Senior Management and recommend to the Board his /her 

appointment or re-appointment. 

. A person should possess adequate gualification, expertise and experience for the position he /she is considered for 

appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a 

person is sufficient /satisfactory for the concerned position. 

. Appointment of Independent Directors is also subject to compliance with provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Schedule IV and rules thereunder and the Listing Regulation. 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior Management: 

. The Remuneration / Compensation / Profit linked Incentive ete. to Managerial Persennel, will be determined by the 

Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The Remuneration /Compensation / Profit Linked Incentive efc. 

to be paid for Managerial Personnel shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and 

Central Government, wherever required. 

. The remuneration and commission to be paid to Managerial Personnel shall be as per the statutory provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force, 

. If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to 

its Managerial Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and if it is not able 
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to comply with such provisions, with the prior approval of the Central Government. 
If any Managerial Personnel draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums more than the 

limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where 

required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. 

Increments if declared to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure shall be recommended by the Committee to 

the Board which should be within the limits approved by the Shareholders in the case of Managerial Personnel. 

The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, in 

compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Policy. The Fixed pay 

shall include monthly remuneration, employer's contribution to Provident Fund, contribution 1o pension fund, pension 

schemes, etc. as decided from to time. The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of 

the Company and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually or at 

such intervals as may be considered appropriate. 

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managerial Personnel, KMP and Senior Management for 

indemnifying them against any official liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the 

remuneration payable to any such personnel. 

Remuneration to Non-Executive /Independent Directors: 

. Remuneration / Profit Linked Commission: The remuneration / profit linked commission shall be in accordance with the 

statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force and Listing 

Regulation. 

. Sitting Fees: The Mon- Executive Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or 

Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the 

Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central 

Government from time to time. 

. Limit of Remuneration /Profit Linked Commission: Remuneration /profit linked Commission may be paid within the 

manetary limit approved by shareholders, subject to the limit not exceeding 1%/3% of the net profits of the Company 

respectively. 

Stock Options: 

L ] Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Managerial Personnel, KMF, Senior Management and any 

employee, except Independent Directors, shall be entitled to any Employee Stock Options (ESOPs) of the Comparny. 

Policy on Board diversity: 

The Board of Directors shall have the optimum combination of Directors from the different areas / fields like production, 

Management, Quality Assurance, Finance, Sales and Marketing, Supply chain etc. or as may be considered appropriate. 

The Board shall have at least one Board member who has accounting or related financial management expertise and at 

least three members who are financially literate. 

Monitoring, Evaluation and Removal: 

Evaluation: The Committee shall carry out evaluation of the performance of every Managerial Personnel, Director, KMP 

and Senior Management on yearly basis. 

Removal: The Committea may recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Managerial 
Personnel, Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, and all other 

applicable Acts, Rules and Regulations, if any. 

Minutes of Committee Meeting: 

L] The proceedings of all meetings must be minutes and signed by the Chairperson of the said meeting or the Chairperson 

of the next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be circulated at the subsequent Board meeting for 

noting. 
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Quorum of Committee Meeting: 

. The quorum for a meeting of the nomination and remuneration committee shall be either two members or one third of the 

members of the committee, whichever is greater, including at least one independent director in attendance. The 

nomination and remuneration committea shall meet atleast once a year. 

Amendment to the Policy: 

. The Board of Directors on its own and/ or as per the recommendations of Momination and Remuneration Committee can 

amend this Policy, as and when deemed fit. 

. In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with 

the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the 

provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under such 

amendment(s), Clarification, circular(s) ete. 

Disclosure: 

. The details of this Policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be disclosed in the Annual Report as part of 

Board's Report therein or alternatively the same may be put up on the Company’s website and reference drawn thereto in 

the Annual Report. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Sd/- 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Date: August 25, 2025 Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Amreli [DIN: 06616061] 
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ANNEXURE D 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES: 

1. Brief outline on CSRA Policy of the Company: 

In today's context, the 'Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is defined as a mandatory way for a Company to balance its 

Economic, Social and Environmental objectives while enhancing the Shareholders' value and Stakeholders expectations. 

Sheetal Cool Products Limited (Company) has engaged itself towards this journey since its inception. The company is 

contributing towards promoting quality of education, improvement in living standard and upliftment of communities comprising 

weaker section in nearby areas. Basic education facilities in nearby areas, free supply of drinking water in nearby areas are also 

some of the welfare activities being undertaken by the Company as a part of its CSR Programs. The company in today's context is 

reqularly warking in the areas of preventive healthcare by organizing medical camps and awareness programs from time to time 

benefiting the residents of nearby areas. 

2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

As the Company fall under the criteria mentioned in the provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, however as per sub-section 9 of section 135 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 where the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not 

exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable 

and the functions of such Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of 

such company. In the financial year under review the amount to be spent by the Company did not exceed Rs. 50 lakhs. 

3. The web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the Board are 

disclosed on the website of the Company: 

The Company has framed a CSR Paolicy in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

same is placed on the website of the Company and the web link for the same is at Web Link for CSR policy 

hitps://www.scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/corporate-social-responsibility-policy.pdf, CSR Projects weblink 

https://scplco.com/wp-content/uploads/2024/08/CSR-Annual-Action-Flan.pdf. 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 

Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Mot Applicable 

5. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): 

(a) Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years is Rs. 26,87,07,988.16 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):- As. 53,74,158 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL 

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Rs. 9,96,237 

(e Total CSR obligation for the financial year : - As. 43,77 ,922 

B. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Amount Unspent 

okl ot Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any 
SEaus o 1 to Unspent CSR Account fund specified under Schedule VIl as 
Flnanchal Year as per section 135(6) per second proviso to section 135(5) 

Amount Date of Mame of Amount Date of 

Transfer the Fund Transfer 

Rs. 57,94,300 MA MA - - - 
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7. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project). -57,94,300 

b} Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA 

c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+c):57,94,300 

(&) Excess amount for set off, if any: 14,16,377. 

Sl Amount 
g || T (Rs. In Lacs) 
(n Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) 53.74 

{ii) Total amount spent for the financial year 57.94 

(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year[(ii)-(i)] 4.2 

{iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 
previous financial year, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{iii)-(iv)] 14.16 

(a) details of Unspent CSR Amount for the preceding three financial years: NA 

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 

years(s): NA 

In case of creation or acquisition of capital assets, furnish the details relating to the assets so created or 

acquired through CSR spentinthe financial year: Mot Applicable 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Date: August 25, 2025 

Place: Amreli 

Sd/- 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Chairman & Managing Director 
[DIN: 06616061] 
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MR-3 
ANNEXURE- E 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 

SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED 
GIDC Plot No. 75to 81, 
Amreli, Gujarat, INDIA 365601 

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by Sheetal Cool Products Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 

provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 

thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 

the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 

conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended March 31, 2025 ("Audit Period"), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter. 

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by the Company for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2025, according to the provisions of: 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under. 

{ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made there under. 

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and byelaws framed there under; 

{iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI 

Act'): 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011, 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. 

(Not Applicable to the Company as there was no reportable event during the Audit period under review) 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 

2021 (Mot Applicable to the Company as there was no reportable event during the Audit period under review) 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Mon-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 

2021 (Mot Applicable to the Company as there was no reportable event during the Audit period under review) 

{f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an |ssue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993; regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Mot Applicable to the Company during the Audit 

period under review); 

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021, (Mot Applicable to 

the Company there was no reportable event during the Audit period under review); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Mot Applicable to the 

Company there was no reportable event during the Audit period under review); 
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(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 

| further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant 

documents and records in pursuance thereof, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically fo the 

Company: 

(a) The Food Safety and standard Act, 2006 and rules and regulations made there under; 

(b) The Legal Metrology Act, 2008 and Legal Metrology (Packaged Commodity Rule, 2011) 

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

{i) Secretarial Standards (55-1 and 55-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above except the following: 

As per Companies Act,2013 

As per the requirements of Section 77 of companies act, 2013 company has not filed CHG-1 within prescribed timeline 

from the date of creation of charge.The company has availed the financial assistance from Axis bank vide sanction letter 

and board resolution dated 04/12/2023, however E-form CHG-1 has been filed on 03/12/2024. 

I further report that - 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Mon-Executive Directors 

and Independent Directors including Woman Director. There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 

taken place during the period under review. 

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 

least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and cbtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 

iterns before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting, 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out with majority as recorded in the minutes of the meetings 

of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be. 

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to menitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

| further report that during the audit period, the company has not undertaken any event/action having a major bearing on the 

Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, ete, 

For Chetan Patel & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

CS Chetan Patel 

Partner 

Membership Mo: 5188 CF MNo.: 3986 

Date: August 18, 2025 Peer Heview Mo. 6135/2024 

Flace: Ahmedabad UDIN: FOO5188G001026791 

Mote: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A' and forms an integral part of this 

report, 
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Annexure “A” to Secretarial Audit Report 

To, 
The Members, 
SHEETAL COOL PRODUCTS LIMITED 
GIDC Plot Mo, 750 81, 

Amreli, Gujarat, INDIA 365601 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter, 

1. The Management of the Company is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records, devise proper systems to 

ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate 

and operate effectively. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records and procedures followed 

by the Company with respect to secretarial Compliance. 

2. | have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 

are reflected in Secretarial Records. | believe that the processes and practices | followed provide a reasonable basis for 

ouropinion. 

3. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records, Books of Accounts and cost records of the 

company. 

4, Wherever required and necessary, | have ocbtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

and regulations and happening of events, secretarial records and other factual position which cannot be otherwise 

varified. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

For Chetan Patel & Associates, 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 
CS Chetan Patel 

Partner 
Membership No: 5188 CP No.: 3986 

Date: August 18, 2025 Peer Review MNo. 6135/2024 

Place: Ahmedabad LUDIMN: FOO5188G001026791 
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iii. 

V. 

vi. 

vil. 

ANNEXURE F 

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the 

financial year ended on 31st March 2025. 

Sr. Director Remuneration Median Ratio 
No Remuneration 

1. | Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuva 19.20 Lacs 1.91 lacs 10.1:1 

2. | Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva 16.80 Lacs 1.91 lacs B.76:1 

3. | Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva 18.00 Lacs 1.91 lacs 9.39:1 

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 

Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year. 

'?:l Key Managerial Personnel % increase 

1. | Mr. Bhupatbhai Bhuva, Managing Director NIL 

2. | Mr. Sanjaybhai Bhuva, Whole Time Director MIL 

3. | Mr. Dineshbhai Bhuva, Whaole Time Director NIL 

4. | Company Secretary 76.99% 

5. | Chief Financial Officer MIL 

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: NA. 

The Company has 891 permanent employees in the roles of the company. 

Average percentiles increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial Remuneration and justification thereot 

and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration - Mot Applicable 

There is no exceptional circumstances for an increase in managerial remuneration to Whole Time Directors. Due to 

Increase in remuneration of employees on the roll, there is increase in median remuneration of employees. 

The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors. 

The Managing Directors orWhole time Directors have not availed any variable remuneration components. 

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company: 

Itis affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the company. 

The Company has no employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the name of every employee, who- 

1. If employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, 
was notless than one crore and two lakh rupees. 

2. If employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, 

inthe aggregate, was notless than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month. 

If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the 

aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing director or 

whaole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two 

percent of the equity shares of the company. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shestal Cool Products Limited ("the Campany”) which comprises the 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of ocur information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 

give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and profit.total comprehensive 

income, its cash flowsand the changes in equity forthe year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Emphasis of Matter 

The Company's management is responsible for carrying out the inspection of its inventories on a regular basis. We hawve not 

independently verified the inventories of the Company during the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of inventories as 

appearing in the balance sheet of the Company may have an effect on the profit and net assets of the Company for the period and 

yvearended March 31, 2025. 

We draw your attention to Note 40 to the financial statements where the Company’s management has stated that outstanding 

balances, if any, at the yearend in respect of trade receivables, trade payables etc. are subject to confirmation from those 

respective parties and consequential reconciliation and/or adjustments arising there from. These have not been independently 

verified by us during the year under review. Any adjustment to the value of such balances as appearing in the balance sheet of the 

Company may have an effect on the profit and net assets of the Company for the period and year ended March 31, 2025. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s ReportThereon 

The Company’s Board of Direclors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, 

Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholders Information, but does not include the financial 

statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

canclusion therean, 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 

whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 

of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

57



Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements 

required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 

performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or eFTor. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 

high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

override of internal control, 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether the company has adeguate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls. 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management. 

g, Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. OQur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern, 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control that we identify during our audit, 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 

in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these mattersin 

our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”}, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 

sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Staterment of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 

Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of 

the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

E. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the 

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appeinted as a director in terms 

of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, referto cur separate Report in*Annexure B". 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section 

197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the bast of our infarmation and according to the explanations given 

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 

197 ofthe Act. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of aur information and according to the explanations given 

lous; 

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements — 
Refer Note 37 to the financial statements: 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses. 

c. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company 

d. 1. The Management has represented that, fo the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 

other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
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{("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

2 The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 

entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Eeneficiaries, 

3. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material 

misstatement. 

8. The Company has not paid any dividends during the year and hence, the provisions of Section 123 of the Act are 

not applicable to the Company. 

f, The reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable fram 1 April 

2023. 

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account which doas not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for all 

relevant transactions recorded in the software, 

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates 

Firm Registration No. 10457 1W 
Chartered Accountants 

Sd/- 
(Hasmukh B. Kalaria) 

N Partnar 

Place : Rajkat, Mem. No. 042002 
Date : May 23, 2025 UDIN:25042002BMJEZD3230 
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Annexure A 

Referred to in the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements on of the Independent Auditors’ Report 

of even date to the members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 

March 31,2025 

(1 (a) Inrespect of its property, plant, and equipment: 

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its intangible assets. 

{b) The Company has a programme of verification of property, plant and eguipment to cover all the items in a phased 

manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 

and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, certain property, plant and equipment and investment 

property were physically verified by the Management during the current reporting pericd. According to the 

information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

o According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the 

examination of the registered sale deed/transfer deed/conveyance deed, we report that, the title deeds, 

comprising all the immovable properties of land and acquired buildings which are freehold, are held in the name 

ofthe Company as atthe balance sheet date. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the reporting period and hence, clause 

(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(@) As explained to us by the management of the Company, there have not been any proceedings initiated or 

pending against the Company under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made 

thereunder during the current reporting period or as atthe balance sheet date, 

(i) (a) As per the information and explanation given to us physical verification of inventory has been conducted at 

reasonable intervals by the management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 

management is appropriate and discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each of the class of inventory 

were not noticed on physical verification. 

{b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned 

working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current 

assets; the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with the banks during the reparting period are in 

agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. 

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made investments in, provided any 

guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 

firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, hence clause (i) of the Orderis not applicable. 

{iv) In our opinion and acecording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any loans, 

investments or provided any guarantees and hence, the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

are not applicable to the Company. 

) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during the 

current reporting period in terms of provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the rules made thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(i) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to 

the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub- 

section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost 

records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a 

view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 
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[wii) 

{wiii) 

(i) 

(x) 

(i) 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 

Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, 

duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities apart from a few 

delays in the payment of advance income tax.. 

(b) Details of statutory dues which have not been deposited as at the balance sheet date on account of disputes are 

given below: 

Name of Mature of dues Forum Period to Gross Amount 
statute where dispute | which the amount due unpaid 

pending amount relates | (in Rs. lacs) (in Rs. lacs) 

Goods and Goods and Appeal at 2017 to 2022 216.31 216.31 
Service Tax | Service Tax Commissioner 

of GST 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any transactions, which were not 
recorded in the books of accounts and which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the current reporting 
period in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961, 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

() 

(f) 

(@) 

(b) 

(a) 

(b) 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in 
the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or banks. The Company has not taken any loans or 
borrowings from the government. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been 

declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the reporting period. 

The Company has obtained term loans during the current reporting period which, in our opinion and according to 

the information and explanations given to us, have been utilized for their stated purpose(s). 

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an 

overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we believe that no funds raised on short-term 

basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. We have however not made a detailed 

examination of the same. 

The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence, clause (ix)(e) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

The Company does not have any associate, subsidiary or joint venture and hence, clause (ix)(f) of the Order is 

not applicable. 

During the current reporting period, the Company has not raised funds by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) and hence reparting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

During the current reporting period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement 

of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the 
Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the current reporting 

period, 

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub- 

section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as 

prescrived under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 
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{xii) 

{xiii) 

{xiv) 

(xv) 

(xvi) 

(xvi) 

(xviii) 

(xix) 

(o) 

@ To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
not received any whistle-blower complaints during the current reporting period. 

The Company is not a Midhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Orderis not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 

177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of 

related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting 

standards. 

{a) In our opinion, the Company has aninternal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b} We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the peried under review during our audit of the 

Company. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the current reporting period the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company, if any or persons connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 

2013 are not applicable. 

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the current 

reporting period and hence, is not required to obtain a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India 

as perthe Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company ("CIC") as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve 

Bank of India. 

id) The Company does not have any CICs as part of the Group and hence, clause (xvi){d) of the Order iz not 

applicable to the Company. 

In our opinion, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current reporting period and in the immediately 

preceding reporting period. 

There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the current reporting period under review. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeating its liabilities existing at the 

date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 

state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on 

the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall 

due. 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amount towards Corporate 

Saocial Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer a Fund specified in Schedule VII 

tothe Companies Act, 2013 within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with the 

second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. 

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any ongoing project(s) 

for which funds remain unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act and hence, is not 

required to transfer any funds to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 

135 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, 

Clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable in the report on the standalone financial statements of the Company. 
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Place : Rajkot, 

Date : May 23, 2025 

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates 
Firm Registration Mo, 104571W 
Chartered Accountants 

Sd,l'_ 

{(Hasmukh B. Kalaria) 

Partner 

Mem. No. 042002 

UDIMN:25042002BMJEZD3230 
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Annexure B 

Referred to in point f. of the section Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of the Independent Auditors’ 

Report of even date to the members of Sheetal Cool Products Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 

March 31,2025 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have 

audited the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of Sheetal Cool Products Limited (“the Company”) as of that 

date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the 

respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

(the "Guidance Nole™) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 

Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and 

bath issuad by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

was established and maintained andif such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the 

risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on assessed risk,. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Company's internal financial controls system owver financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect of financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may cccur and not be detectad. Also, 

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system owver financial reporting 

and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were ocperating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contral 

stated in the Guidance Mote issued by ICAI 

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates 
Firm Registration No. 10457 1W 
Chartered Accountants 

Sd,l'_ 

{Hasmukh B. Kalaria) 

Pl : ¥ Partner 
ace : Rajkot, 

Mem. No. 042002 
Date : May 23, 2025 UDIN:25042002BMJEZD3230 
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 
(In Rs. Lacs) 

. As at As at 
P hesiore M. March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 

l. Assels 

Men-current assets 
(&} Plant, Property and Equipments 3 3,949.97 438519 
(b} Imangible Assets 3 a7.28 812 

(e) Financial Assels 
(i) Oaher Mon-Current Finamncial Assels 4 43467 321.07 

(d) Deferred Tax Asssts (MNat) 15 198,39 121.54 

5 4,620,382 4,835,892 

Current asgets 
(&) Imentorias 5 14,783.25 12,872.09 

(b} Financial Assols 
{i} Trade Receivabia & 4 553.08 5,000.37 
(i) Cash and Gash Equivelants ¥ 1,002.31 504,23 
{iiil) Loans &8 a.17 787 
{iv) Other Financial Assels a 13.48 751 

(o) Other Current Assats 10 134.45 140.04 

Total Current Assets 20,475.71 18,639.21 
TOTAL ASSETS 25,096.03 2347514 

Il EQUITY AMD LIABILITIES 

Equity 
a) Equity Shars Capital 1 1,050.00 1.050.00 
b} Dther Equity 12 12,061,290 10,403.37 
Taotal Equity 1 T A53 37 

Liabilities 

Mon-Currenl Liabilities 

a) Financial Liabilities 

{i} Borrowings 13 601.67 1,561.51 
(i) Dher Financial liabilities 14 969,10 14,18 

b} Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 : z 
&) Long Term Provislons 16 2.40 3.16 
Total Hon Current Liabilities 157317 247885 
Current Liabilities 

a) Finarcial Liabilities 

{i} Borrowings 17 6918.37 6,795.95 
{ii) Trade Payables 8 2,455 86 1,920.32 
{iil) CHher Financial Lizbilities 13 204,32 108.5% 

b} Other Current Liabilties 20 392,46 37133 
) Short Term Provisions 21 i73 1.38 

d) Current Tax Liabilities (MNet) 2 441,82 344 B8 
Total Current Liabilitles 10.411.57 9.542.82 

Total Liabilities 11.984.74 12,021.77 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25.096.03 23.475.14 

The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying noles 

As per our Repart of even date 

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates 

Charterad Accountants 
Firm Registration Mo, 104571W 

Sdf- 
Hasmukh B. Kalaria 

Partner 

Mem. Mo. 042002 

Rajkot, May 23, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Sd/- 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Managing Director 

DIM: 06616061 

Sdy- 
Jinal R. Naria 
Chief Financial Officar 

FAM: BEDPHNEOTEE 

Amreli, May 23, 2025 

Self- 

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva 
Whaole Time Director 

DIN: 06616086 

Sd/- 
Bharat Trivedi 

Company Secratary 

PAM: ABEPTD278M 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025 
(im As. Lacs) 

For the year ended | For the year ended 
Particulars Naote 

Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

. Revenus from Operations 23 32,130.58 35,270.82 

1. Other Incomes 24 TE.5A 279.45 

. Total Income (I + 1} 32,207.16 35,550.28 

IV. Expenses: 

Cost of Mabarials Consurmed 25 18,558.03 21,113.50 

Purchases of Slock-in-Trade . . 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Prograss and Stock-in-Trade 26 2.007.35 3,108.96 

Employee Benofits Expense 27 1,930,386 2,033 

Finance Cosls 28 656.01 BB9.77 
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3 793.73 916,66 

Other Expanses 20 5,011.57 4,661.14 

Total Expenses 2_5..95?.05 32,729.34 

¥. Profit before exceptional items and tax (II-IV) 2.250.11 2,820.94 

VI. Exceptional income/{expenses)-MNet - - 

VIl. Profit betore tax (V + V1) 2,250.11 2,820,904 

VIIl. Tax expense: 30 

(1} Current tax 672,43 793,35 
(2} MAT credit availed / (entitlament) - - 

(3) Deferred tax liability(assets) (77.20) (55.98) 
(4] Prior Pariod Tax {2.00) (0.50) 

1%. Profit for the year from continuing operations (VIVII) 1,656.88 2,084.08 

¥. Other Comprehansive Income/{Expense) (OCI) net of tax expense 
(1) Hems that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss Account 1.38 (.68 

Less: Income Tax impact on above .35 047 

(2) hems that will be reclassified to Profit and Loss Account 

Less: Income Tax impact on above = 

Hi ¢ Ingome/Expe 1.04 0.51 

ive Incorme (X + X} 1,657.92 2,084,509 

Xill. Eamings per equity share of Rg. 10 each 31 

[1] Baslc 15.78 1985 
(2] Diluted 15.78 19.85 

The above statement shall be read In conjuction with accompanying noles 

As per our Repart of even date 

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates 

Charterad Accountants 
Firm Reqistration Mo, 104571W 

Sdi- 
Hasmukh B. Kalaria 

Partner 

Mem. Mo. 042002 

Rajkot, May 23, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Sd/- 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Managing Director 

DIN: 08616061 

Sdy- 
Jinal R. Naria 

Chief Financial Officar 

FAM: BEDPHNEOTEE 

Amreli, May 23, 2025 

Self- 

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva 
Whaole Time Director 

DIN: 06616086 

Sd/- 
Bharat Trivedi 

Company Secratary 

PAM: ABEBPTD278M 
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Statement of Change in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025 

A | Equity Share Capital Amount 

Balance as at 1st April 2023 1,050,00 

Change in Equity Share Cagital during the year - 

Balance as at 315t March 2024 1,050.00 
Change in Equity Share Capital during the year E 
Balance as at 31st March 2025 1,050.00 

B | Other Equity 

Reserves and Surplus 

Particulars Securities Retained Other Total 
Premium Earnings Comprehensive 

Income 

Balance as at 1st April 2023 2.100.00 6.208.74 10.04 8.318.78 

Profit for the yaar - 2.084.08 - 2.084.08 

Other Comprahansive Income - - 0.51 0.51 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,100.00 B,292.82 10.55 10,403.37 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 2,100.00 B,292.82 10.65 10,408.37 

Reserves and Surplus 

Portholors Securities Retained Other Tatal 
Premium Earnings Comprehensive 

Income 

Balance as at 1st April 2024 2.100.00 8.292.82 10.55 10.403.37 

Predit for tha vaar - 1,656.88 . 1,656.88 

Other Comprehansive Income - - 1.04 1.04 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,100.00 9,948.70 11.59 12,061.29 

Balance as at 31st March 2025 2,100.00 9,949.70 11.59 12,061.29 

The abowe statement shall be read In conjuctan with accompanying notes 

Az per our Report of even date 

Faor and on bahalf of the Board of Directors, 

For, H. B. Kalarla & Assoclates Sd/- Sdi- 

Charterad Accountants Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva Sanjaybhal D. Bhuva 
Firm Regqistraticn Mo. 104571W Managing Director Whole Time Director 

DIN: DEE18061 DIN: DBE16088 

Sdi- Sdf- Sd/- 
Hasmukh B. Kalaria Jinal R. Naria Bharat Trivedi 
Partnar Chief Financial Officar Company Secratary 

Meam. No. 042002 PAN: BKDPNGOTEE PAN: ABBPTOZ278M 

Rajkot, May 23, 2025 Amreli, May 23, 2025 
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Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2025 
(in Rs. Locs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

A. | Cash Flow from Operaling Activity 
et Profit Before Tax 2,250.11 2.820.94 

Adjustmanis For: 
Depreciation 7893.73 916.66 
Interest & Financial Expenses 656.01 BEQ.TT 
{ProfityLoss on sale of Fized Assst 24281 108.00 

Interest Recelved on Deposits (19.84) (13.43) 
Prowision for Debtors 25,52 1.23 

Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 3,0948.34 4,723.18 

Adgustrnent For: 
Inventaries (1, 784.17) 3.804.55 

Trada Recenables 421,80 (4,685.34) 
Other Mon-Current Financial Assels (113.60) (23.68) 
Financial Assets- Loans (1.20) {0.71) 

Ciher current financial Assets 12,57 [55.74) 
Trade Payables 53547 {555.90) 

Shori-term Provisions 0.36 1.35 

Cither Nan-current Financial Liabilities 1,269.99 B80.99 
Lang-term Prowvisions 0.64 0.41 

Crther Current Liahilities 21.13 148.32 

Oiner Current Financial Liabilities .07 12.81 
Taxes Paid (573.49) {1,260,16) 

Met Cash Generated from Operations 3,807.92 2,991.12 

B.  Cash Flow from Investment Activities 

Purchase of Properly, Plant and Equipments (1,823.90) {1,601.100 
Proceeds from sale of PPE - 15.4% 
Change in Shart-term loans and advances - Capital Advance (B.97) {3.98) 

Interast Received 13.87 19.25 

Het Cash Flow from Investment Activities (1,817.00) (1,570.34) 

C. | Cash Flow from Financial Activities: 

Changes in Long Term Borrowings (Met) (259.84) (828.53) 

Changes in Short Term Borrowings (Mat) 123.02 6O7.73 
Interest & Financlal Expenses (B56.01) (B89.77) 

Met Cash Flow from Financial Activitios 1,492.84) (1,110.57) 

Total of Cash Flow (A+B+C) 468,08 31021 

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 504.23 194.03 

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the ending of the year 1,002.31 50423 

Cash & Cash Equivalent compriging of 
Cash on Hand 1,001.02 437 G& 

Balances with Scheduled Banks 1.30 B6.58 
1,002.31 504.23 

Mote: 1. The above statement shall be read in conjuction with accompanying notes 
2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm this year's classification. 

As per our Report of even date 

For, H. B. Kalaria & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration Mo, 104571W 

Sdi- 
Hasmukh B. Kalaria 

Partner 

Mem. Mo. 042002 

Rajkot, May 23, 2025 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors, 

Sd/- 
Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 
Managing Director 

DIN: DBE168061 

Sd/- 
Jinal R. Naria 
Chief Financial Officar 

PAN: BEDPMNEDOTEE 

Amreli, May 23, 2025 

Sdi- 
Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva 
Whole Time Director 

DiN: 08616086 

Sdi- 
Bharat Trivedi 
Company Secratary 

FAN: ABBPTO27EM 
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Sheetal Cool Products Ltd. Annual Report 2024-25 

Motes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

Note: 4 Other Non-Current Financial Assets (in Rs. Lacs) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

{Unsecured, consldered good) 

Security Deposils 280 .45 20497 

Bank Fixed Deposit 14522 26.10 

{havirg maturity period more than 12 months) 

Total 43467 321.07 

Naote: 5 Inventories 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Raw maternals 6,015.55 223404 

Finished goods: B.747.70 10,755.05 

Total 14,763.25 12,979.09 

Mote: & Trade Receivables 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Trade receivables outstanding for a pariod excesding six 

maonths from the date they are due for payment 

Unsecured, considered good 2,262 08 1.716.48 

Legs: Expected Credit Logss 28.68 316 

Sub total 2,233.40 1,713.32 

Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six 
manths frem the date they are due for payrmant 

Unsacured, considerad good 231986 3,287.05 

Tatal 4,563.06 5,000.37 

6.1 Trade receivables ageing schedule 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

{Quistanding for the following periods from the date of transaction) 

Unszecured 
Undisputed trade receivables - considerad good 
Less than & months 2,319.86 328705 

& manths -1 vear 1,882.77 1,695 48 

1-2 years 579.07 1.60 

23 years 1.33 8.02 
More than 3 years 18.92 11.40 

4,581.74 5,003.54 

Lass: Expactad Credit Loss 28.68 318 

Total 4,553.06 5,000.37 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

Note: 7 Cash and Cash Equivelants (in Rs. Lacs) 

Particul As at As at 
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Bank Balances:- 

In Current Acoount 1.30 13.84 

Othes Bank Balance - 5273 

Cash on hand 1.001.02 437 65 

Total 1.002.31 504.23 

Note: B Loans - Current 

Pesriedl As at As at 
ieu March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

{Unsecured and Considred Good) 

Loans to Employess a7 747 

Total a7 7.87 

Note: 8 Other Financial Assets-Current 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest and Dividend Receivables on Investmants 13.48 7.51 

Total 13.48 7.51 

Note: 10 Other Current Assets 

As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Statutory Recelvable (net) 25,85 25.85 
Advances 1o Suppliers 2513 10.48 
Capital Advances 14.43 TA5 

Advancas Recoverable in Cash or in Kind 22,32 2246 
Prapaid Expanses 23.10 28.80 

Cither Current Assels 2382 45.00 

Total 134.45 140.04 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 
{in Rs. Lacs) 

Note: 11 Equity Share Capital 

As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Authorised 
1,50,00,000 (Previous years 1,50,00,000) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ gach. 1,500.00 1.500.00 

1,500.00 1,500.00 
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up 

1,05,00,000 {Previous year 1.05,00,000) 1,050.00 1,050.00 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each. 

Total 1,050.00 1,050.00 

11.1 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:- 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Particu Mo of shares (R=. In lakhs) Mo of shares {Rs. In lakhs) 

Shares outstaning at beginning 1,05,00, 000 1,050.00 1,05,00,000 1,050.00 
ol the year 

Add: Issus of sharas = = & 

Total 1,05,00,000 1,050.00 1.05,00,000 1,050.00 

11.2 The details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares: 

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

Name of the Sharshoider No of shares % halding No of shares % holding 

Sanjaybhai Dakubhai Bhuva 18,15,450 17.29% 18,15,450 17.29% 
Dineshbhai Dakubhai Bhuva 8,485,550 8,085 8,408,550 8,085 

Asmitaben Sanjaybhai Bhuva 5,35,950 5.10% 5,35.950 5105 
Kajalben Dinashbhai Bhuva 16,70,150 15.91% 16,70,150 15.91% 
Mayanaben Bhupatbhai Bhuva 7.55,450 T19% 756,450 T A% 

11.3 Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

K ot s e As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 

No of shares %% holding Mo of shares % holding 

Dakubhal Jivrajbhal Bhuva 506.250 4.82% 506,250 4.82% 

Sanjay Dakubhai Bhuva 1.815.450 17.29% 1.815.450 17.28% 

Bhupatbhal Dakubhal Bhuva 238,800 227% 238,800 2.27% 
Dineshkumar Dakubhai Bhuva B48.550 B.08% B48 550 8.08% 

Asmitaben Sanjaybhai Bhuva 535.950 5.10% 535,950 510% 

Kajalben Dineshihai Bhuva 1,670,150 15.914% 1,670,150 15.91% 

Shantaben Dakubhai Bhuva 454 800 4. 62% 454 800 4. 62% 

Mayanaben Bhupatbhai Bhuva 755,450 7A9% 755,450 7.19% 
Hardik Dineshbhai Bhuva 14,400 014% 14,400 0.14% 
Ektaben Hardikbhai Bhuva 17,600 0.17% 17,600 017% 

* There is no change is promators shareholding during the year. 

114 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The 
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of areholders, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the 

equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion of their 

shareholding. 
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Motes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

Note: 12 Other Equity (in As. Lacs) 

As at As at 
eSO March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 

Reserves and Surplus 

A. Securities Premium 

Opening Balance 2,100.00 2,100.00 

{+) Change during the year - - 
Balance as at year end 2,100.00 2,100.00 

B. Retalned Earnings 

Opening balance 8,232 .82 5,208.74 
{+) Met Profit for year 1,656.88 2,084.08 
Balance as at year end 9,949.70 8,292.82 

C. Other Comprehensive Income 
Opening balanca 10.55 10,04 

{+]) Changes during the year 1.04 0.51 

Balance as at year end 11.59 10.55 

Total 12,061.29 10,403.37 

Note: 13 Borrowings-Non Current 

As at As at 
redrimirmis March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 

Secured 

Term loans from banks 388.05 692,14 
Vahicle laan lrom banks 5.81 138.62 
Working capital term loans from banks 20781 73276 

Total B01.67 1,561.51 

13.1 Terma of Repayment of Loans; 

Particulars{Name of financier) Nature of Security Terms of Repayment Rate of Interest 

Term Loans from Banks (Axis Bank) Hypothecation of entire plant & Repayabls in 44 Monthly Installmeants B.ASY% 

machineries, other movable of Rg. 25.34,080- 
assets and mortgage of land & 
building of the Company 

Vehicle Loan from Banks (HDFC bank) Hypothecation of the respective vehicle Repayvable in 60 EMI of Rg. 38,1600~ o B13% 

53,4000 

Wrking capital term loans from Charge over anlire current asset Aepayable in 27 to 48 Monthly Installments 8_25% 
banks (Axis Bank) and mowvabla assel of the company of R5. B.33.333) to RS, 13,44, 444/- 

{after moratorium of 2 yoars) 

Note: 14 Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current 

As at As at 

o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Security deposits from dealers 

BE8.10 91418 

Total B69.10 g14.18 
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Motes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

Hote: 15 Deterred Tax Liability (Net) {in As. Lacs) 

As at As at 
EREEn March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Deterred Tax Liability : ; 
Lesa: Deferred Tax Asset (198,39) (121.54) 
et Deferred Tax Liabiling Asset) (188.39) (121.584) 

Total (198.38) (121.54) 

Note: 16 Long term provisions 

As at As at 
e March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Provision for employee benefits: 

Gratuity 2.40 16 

Total 2,40 3.16 

Note: 17 Borrowings- Current 

As at As at 

Fartieuies March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Current Maturities of Long Term Debits 43371 731.58 

Secursd 

G484 68 

Working Capatal Leans from banks B,063.77 

Total 6.918.37 6,785.35 

171 Terms of Repayment 

Particulars 
(Name of financier) Nature of Security Terms of Repayment Rate of Interest 

Working Capital Loan from Hypothecation of the current and Repayable on demand #.25% 
bank (Axis Bank) movable assets of the Company 

Mote: 18 Trade Payahbles 

As at As at 

it March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Micra, Small and Medium Entreprises® .3 2218 

Cithers 2 42455 1,898.21 

Total 2,455.86 1,920.39 

*Mote : Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enerprises Developmentact, 2006 certain disclosure are requirad to be made for enterprises which are coverad uncer the 

Acl The above information regarding Micro, Small and Mediom Enlerprises has been determined to the exient such parlies have been identified on the basis of 
infarmation available with the Company. 
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Motes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

18.1 Trade payables ageing schedule {in As. Lacs} 

As at As at 

PRI March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 
{Outstanding for the following perieds from the date 

of transaction) 

Undiaputed trade payables - MSMEs 
Less tham 1 year 31.31 2218 

1-2 years 2 i 

2-3 years " 

More than 3 years : = 

| 22.18 

Undisputed trade payables - other than MSMEs 2.424.55 1,858 47 

Less than 1 year 2 = 
1-2 yaars - 
2-3 years . 38.74 

Maore than 3 years 2,424.55 1,898.21 

Total 2,455.86 1,920.39 

18.2 The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises based on available information with the co. is as under: 

As at As at 

Particulare March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Principal amount due and remaining unpaid at the year end 31.31 2218 

Interest dus on above and remaining unpaid interest at the year end = = 
Interest paid other than sec 16 beyend the appointed day during the - E, 

year 
Principal amount paid beyond the appointed day during the year - - 

Interest piad under sec 16 beyond appoint day during the year - - 

Interest due and payable for payment already made - - 

Amount aof further interest remaining due and payable in - - 

succsading years 

Mote: 19 Other Financial Liabilities - Current 

As at As at 
Pisticuinty March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Interest accrued and due on berrowings 46.67 = 
Capital Creditors 2578 4.12 

Employes Related Liabilities 128,88 105.48 

Tatal 201.32 109.59 

Note: 20 Other Current Liabilities 

As at As at 

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Statutory Dues 214.65 230.71 

Advance from Customers 177.35 131.62 
Accrued expanses payvable 048 

Tatal 39246 ara3 
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Motes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

Note: 21 Short Term Provisions (In Rs. Lacs) 

As at As at 
FRELDUy March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Prowision for Expenses 1.64 1.31 

Provision for Employee Benefits: 

Gratuity 010 0.08 

Tatal 1.73 1.38 

Note: 22 Current Tax Liabilities (Met) 

As at As at 
Eatiniinn March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Provision for Incomsa-tax 441 .82 344,88 

Total 441.82 344.88 
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Motes to Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 

Note: 23 Revenue from Operations {in As. Lacs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Sale of Products 

(a) Domestic Sales 3041527 35,184.26 

(b} Export Sales 1.715.32 BE.ST 
32,130.58 35,270.82 

Total 3213058 35,270.82 

Mote: 24 Other Income 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Interest on Financial Assets 

On Bank Fixed Deposits 4.05 B.07 

On Crthers 15.79 7.35 

Insurance Claim - 5.75 

Commission Income 4.01 887 

Incame from governmeant grants'subsidies - 45,00 

Miscallaneows Incoma 51.82 206.61 

Total 76.58 27945 

Note: 25 Cost of Materials Consumed 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Opaning Inventary 2,224.04 2,919.66 

Add : Purchasa 23,349.54 2041787 

Lass : Clasing Invantory 8,015.58 2.224.04 

Total 19,5508.03 21,113.50 

Note: 26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 

For the year ended For the year ended 

et March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Inventories (at close): 

Finished Goods B.747.70 10.755.05 

B,747.70 10,755.05 

Inventories (at commencement): 

Finished Goods 10,755.06 13.864.01 

10,755.05 13,864.01 

Tatal 2,007.35 3,108.96 

Hote: 27 Employes benefit expenses 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Salarias and Wages 1.916.40 2,028.74 

Contributions Lo - 

Provident fund, Superannuation scharme & Other funds 242 318 

Stalf welfare expenses 11.54 7.39 

Tatal 1.930.36 2,038.31 
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27.1 Employee Benefits, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below: 

Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan: {in As. Lacs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

(I} Amount Recognised in Balance Sheet 

Present value of unfunded Obligations 2.50 3.22 

Fresent value of funded Obligations . . 

Fair Value of plan assels . - 
Net Liability (asset) 2.50 3.22 

() Amounts 1o be recognlsed in Profit and Loss Account 

Service Cast 

Currant Sarvice Cost 1.00 1.14 

Past Servica Cost - - 

Curtailment and sattherment . 

Nat Interast Cost 0,23 0,26 
Total included in Exployees Expenses 1.23 1.45 
Expenses Deducted from the Fund - - 

Total Charged to profit and loss 1.23 1.45 

{1} Other Comprehensive Income for the Period 

Components of acturial gaindoss cn abligation - . 

Due to Change In Financial Assumption 0.10 0.08 

Due o change in demographic assumplicn - - 

Due o Experience Adjustiments [2.04) {0.78) 

Raturn on planned assels excluding ameunts included in inlerest income - - 

Amount Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {1.94) (0.68) 

{IV) Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation 
Opaning Defined Benefit Obdigation 3.22 3.45 

Intarest cost 0.23 0.26 

Components of acturial gainloss on obligation 

Due to Change in Financial Assumption 0.10 0.08 

Dwe to change in demeographic assumplicn . . 

Due to Experience Adjustments (2.04) (D.78) 

Current Service Cost 1.00 1.19 
Losa/Galn on Curtallment - - 

Liabilies Extinguished on setiiement - - 

Liabilitias assumed in an amalgamalicn in the nature of 
purchase 
Exchanga difference of foreign plan : . 
Benalits Paid - (0.99) 

Closing Defined Benefit Obligaticn 2.50 3.23 

{V} Assumptions: 

Discount Rate (per annum) T.45% 7.45% 

Rate of Increase in Salary 7.000%% 7.00% 
10.00% p.a at 10.00¢% p.a at 

Withdrawal Rate younger ages younger ages 
reducing to reducing to 

2.00% 2.00% 
p.a at older ages p.a al older ages 

Note: 28 Finance Cost 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Interest Expenses 

On Long Term Loan 11252 247.24 
On Short Term Loan 493.98 556.21 
On Olher Borrowing and/or late payments 498.51 65.79 

Other Borrowing Costs - 20,54 

Total 656.01 8BO.TT 
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(im Rs. Lacs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
EaLTI— March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Direct Expenses 

Stores and Spares Consumed 14510 Ba.21 

Pawer and Fual 2,956.50 3,0659.78 

Factory and Other Expenses 63.88 56.62 

Repairs to Machineny 47.78 43.62 

Indirect Expenses 

Rent Expenss 12.38 10.02 

Transportation and Distribution Expensas 228 2.08 

Bank charges 16.88 0.86 

Watar Chrages 2.61 1.15 

Repairs to Others 16.97 672 

Insuranca 46.62 52.89 

Rates and Taxes 10.24 4.71 

Directors' sitting fees 0.63 0.84 

Telephone and Postage 11.83 12.41 

Printing and Stationary 10,18 11.78 

Donation and Other Subscriplons 0.12 019 

Registration and Filing Fees 1.14 0,22 

Legal & Professional Fees Ta.72 51.78 

Teavelling and Comeyance 188.03 188.08 

Payments to Auditors 5.75 5.25 

Advertisement and Publicity 385.07 310,03 

Catering and Cantean Expensa 31.48 48.36 

Payrment for Technical Services 2B.09 4.4 

Commission to Selling Agenis 2827 12.56 

CSR Expense 57.04 48,50 

Viehicle running expanses 518.19 481.00 

Expart Expansas 31.04 3.88 

Loss on Sale of Assel 242.81 108,00 

Provision for Expected credit loss 2552 1.23 

Miscellansouws Expenses 43.03 14.01 

Tatal 5,011.57 4,661.14 
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20,1 Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities 
{In Rs. Lacs) 

Pacticulsrs For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year 57.94 49,50 

Amount spent during the year on : 

Construction’ Acquisition of any assst £ - 

On purposa other than above 57.04 49.80 

Amount of shortfall at the end of the year 

Total of previous year shortfall 

Matura of CSR activity 

Promating healthcara 
including prevantive 

healthcare, distributation 

of food and cloths, 

promation of education 

Promaling haalbcara 

including preventiva 

healthcara, distributation 

of food and cloths, 

promotion of education 

and animal welfara atc. and animal weliara eic. 

Deatails of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a 
L33 o See Note. 33 fo 

truist contrellad by the company in relation to CSA expanditure mlatifismnfiyh “;flm;fim mlatadapanyahgama;tim 

as per relevant Accounting Standard 

Where a provision is made with respect 1o a liability incurred by 

antering into a contractual obigation, the movemants in the MA MA 

provasion during the year should be shown separalaly. 

28.2 Payments to Auditors as: 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Statutory Auditors : 
ijAudit Feas 4,70 4.20 

i) For Taxation matters 1.05 1.05 

Tatal 5.75 5.25 
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Note: 30 Income Tax {in Fis. Lacs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Net Tax Expenses 

Currant tax 67243 793,35 

Datarrad tax liabiliyiassets) (77.20) {55.89) 
Prior Period Tax (2.00) (0.50) 

593.23 T36.86 

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit 

computed by applying the Income tax rate 

Profit! (loss) before fax 2.250.11 2,820.94 

India’s statutory incoms tax rate 25.17% 25.17% 

Expected income tax expense as per applicable taxes 586.31 708,97 

Mon-deductibles expenses 28.92 27.38 

Prior Pericd Tax (2,00} (0.30) 

Tatal 593.23 T36.86 

Note: 31 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
b March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 

attributable 1o Equity Sharehalders (Rs, In lakhs) 1,656.88 2,084.08 

Welghted average number of shares considensd for 10,500,000 1,05.00,000 

caleulating EPS (In Mos.) 

Basic Earnings per shara [Rs.) 15.78 19.85 

Diluted Earnings per share (As.) 15.78 19.85 

Faca Value par equity shara (Rs.) 10,00 10.00 

HNote: 32 Additional regulatory information 

32.1 Detalls of benami property{ies) held 

The Company does nal have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. 

322 Security of current assets against borrowings 

The Company is having borrowings from banks or financial institutions againat which security of current assets is given, Quarterly returns and siatements of curment 
agsats filed by the Company with banks and financial Institutions are generally in agresment with the books of accounts, There are no matenal discrepancies fourd. 

323 Details of wilful default 

The Company has not been declarad as a wiliul defaulter by any bank or financial institution, in accordance with the guidance on wilful defaulters issued by Reserve 

Bank of India. 

324 Relationship with struck-off companies 

The Company does not have any iransactions with struck-off companies. 

325 Delay in registration/satistaction of charges with Registrar of Companies 

Thwa Company does not have any charges or safistaction which is yet to be registe red with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

326 Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The Company has complied with the number of layers of Companies as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction 

on number of Layars) Rules, 2017, 
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32.7 Analytical ratios (in Fis. Lacs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Frixitues March 31,2025 March 31,2024 ihiaton 

Current ratic 

Current assets (in RAs. lacs) {A) 20.475.71 18,839.21 

Current llabiites (in As. lacs) (B) 10.411.57 9,542 92 
Ratio (limes) = (A)M(B) 1.897 1.95 0.69% 

Debl-equity ratio 
Tatal debt {in Rs. lacs) (A) 7.520.04 8,356,868 
Shareholders’ lunds (in Rs. lacs) (B) 13.111.29 11,453.37 

Ratio (times) = [A)(B) 0.57 0.73 -21.39% 

Debt service coverage ratio 

Met profit’{loss) before tax {in Rs, lacs) 225011 2.520.94 

Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs) 656.01 8B9.77 

Add: Deprecigtion and amortisation expense (in Rs. lacs) 793.73 916.66 
Earnings available for debt services (in Rs. lacs) (A) 3.690.85 4,627.37 

Interest expanse (in As. lcs) BSE.01 88977 

Principal repayment {in As, lacs) B36.82 1,141,058 

Dabt service (in As. laes) (B) 1,452 84 2,030.82 

Ratio (times) = (AW{B) 2.48 2.28 8.77% 

Return on equity 
Nat profitiloss) after tax {in Rs. lacs) (A) 1,6560.68 2,084.08 

Average shareholders' funds (in Rs. lacs) (B) 12.282.33 10,411.08 
Ratio (%) = (AN[B) 13.49% 20.02% -32.61% 

Inventory turnover ratio 

Cost of goods sold (in Rs. lacs) [A) 21.565.38 24,222 46 
Average inventory (in Rs. lacs) (B} 13.871.17 14,881.38 

Ratio (times) = (AW(B) 1.55 1.63 -4.49% 

Trade receivables turnover ratio 
Fevenise from operations (in As, lacs) (A) 32.130.58 35,270.82 
Avarage trade receivabilas (in Bs. lacs) (B) 4. 7T6.71 2,658.32 

Ratio %ums‘_l = (AMB} 6.73 13.27 -48.30% 

Trade payables turnover ratio 
Total purchase (in As. lacs) (A) 23,349.54 2041787 

Average trade payables (in Rs. lacs) (B) 2.188.12 2,198.34 

Ratio (times) = (A){B) 10.67 9.28 14.89% 

Net capital turnover ratio 
Revenue from operations {in Rs, lacs) (A} 32130.58 35,270.82 

Currant assets (In As. lacs) 20.475.71 18,639.21 

Less: Current Habilities (in Rs. lacs) 10.411.57 9,542 92 
Net working capital (in Rs. lacs) 10.064.15 9,096,209 
Average net working capital (in Bs. lacs) (B) 0 58022 8,345.27 
Ratio (limes) = (A)N{B) 3.35 4.23 -20.65% 

Met profit ratio 
Mat profitiloss) after tax {in Rs. lacs) (A) 1,656.88 2,084.08 
Ravanua from operations {in Bs. lacs) (B} 32.130.58 35,270.82 

Ratio (22) = (AN{B) 5.16% 5.91% -12.73% 

Return on capital employed 

Met profit’{loss) before tax {in Rs. lacs) 225011 2,820.94 

Add: Finance cost (in Rs. lacs) B56.01 88977 

Eamning bafore interest and taxes (In As. lacs) {A) 2.006.12 3.710.71 

Average capital employed (in Bs. lacs) (B) 14.308.34 13,402.26 
Ratio (%) = (AM(B) 20.31% 27.69% -26.64% 

Return on investment 
Income earned on imestments [in As. lacs) (A) - 
Averaga invesiments (in Bs. lacs) (B) 5 : 

Ratio (%) = (AM[B) MA MA 0.00% 
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Reason for change for more than 25% 

1. Return on equity 

Returm on equity has been decreased as company has lower profitability during the year where as there is a increase in equity fund as compare to previous 

reparting year. 

2, Trade recelvables turnover ratlo 

Trade receivable turnover ratio has decreased due 1o slower collection from debtors and increase in deblors recehable cycle duning the repoarting penod. 

3. Return on capital employed 
Met working capital ratio has decreased due to increase in net working capital during the current reporting period also company has lower profitability during the 
reparting period as compare 1o previous year. 

328 Undisclosed income 

The Company does not heve any such transactans which s not recorded In the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the yeaar in 

the tax assessments undes the income tax act, 1961 (such as search or survey o any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961). 

329 Details of cryplo currency or virtual currency 

Tha Company have not raded or invested in Cryplo eurrency or Virlual Currency during the financial year. 
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Mote: 33 Related Party Information as per Ind AS 24 

(A) Name of related party and nature of relationship 

Mame of related party 

1. Where significant influence exists 

DJBS Foundation Sheetal Seva Trust 

Sheetal Pan & Coldrinks, Amreli 

Sheetal Smiley Parlour 

Sheetal lce cream Parlour 

2. Key Managerial Personnel 

Bhupatbhai D. Bhuva 

Dineshbhai D. Bhuwva 

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva 

Kiranben M. Gajera 

Ajaykurnar V. Mandanka 

Vijaybhai B. Desai 

Mahesh Labhshankar Purohit ~ 

Bharat Trivedi * 

Jinal R. Maria 

3. Relatives Of Key Managerial Personnel 

Dakubhai 0. Bhuva 

Ashmitaben 5. Bhuva 

Hardik D. Bhuva 

Keval D. Bhuva 

Mayanaben B. Bhuva 

Kajalben D Bhuva 

Ektaben H. Bhuva 

Yash B Bhuva 

* Appointed wef 16th August, 2023 

~ Resigned w.e.f 15th May, 2023 
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{B) Transactions with related party {in As. Lacs) 

Transaction Amount 
Mame of Related Party 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel 

Bhupatbhai B Bhuva 19.20 19.20 

Dineshbhai D Bhuva 18.00 18.00 

Sanjaybhai . Bhuva 16.80 16,80 

Mahesh Labhshankar Purohit - 0.53 

Jinal R. Maria 4.20 4.20 

Bharat Trivedi 2.00 1.13 

Director Sitting Fees 

Kiranben N. Gajera 0.21 0.28 

Ajaykumar V. Mandanka 0.21 0.28 

Dakubhal [ Bhuva - . 

Vijaybhai B. Deaai 0.21 0.28 

Salary to Relatives of KMP's 

Ashmitaben S, Bhuva 5.40 5,40 

Hardik D, Bhuva T.20 T.20 

Keval D Bhuva 720 T.20 

Mayanaben B. Bhuva 5.40 5.40 

Kajalben D, Bhuva 5.40 5,40 

Ektaben H. Bhuva 4.80 4.80 

Yash B Bhuva 4.80 4.80 

Rent Paid 

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva 2.40 240 

Revenue from sale of goods 

Sheetal Pan & Coldrinks, Amreli T8.02 1563 

Shaetal Smiley Parlour 30.04 28493 

Shaetal lce cream Parlour 11.98 

Reimbursement of expenses paid 

Sanjaybhai 0. Bhuva 122,20 92,20 

Kenval O Bhuva 330 5E.00 

CER expenszes paid 

DJBS Foundation Sheetal Seva Trust 57.27 49,50 
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{C)Outstanding Balances with related party (in A%, Lacs) 

QOutstanding balance 

R W PO SSALE i For the year ended | For the year ended 
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Salary Paid in Advance 

Sanjaybhal [, Bhuva - 4,75 

Rent Payable 

Sanjaybhai D. Bhuva 0.20 

(D) There are no provisions Tor doubtful debls or amounts written off or written Back in respect of debts due to or dus from related paries 

{E) Related party relationship is as identified by the Company on the basis of infarmation available with them and relied upen by the Auditars 
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Hote: 34 Fair Value Measurements 

Accounting classification and fair values 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial Rabilities. including their levels in the fair valua hisrarchy. It does not 

include fair valus information for financial assets and financial liabilities if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fairvalue. 

{A) Financial instruments by category (in As. Lacs) 

Sl Carrying amount Fair value 

i, E FVYTPL FVTOCI | Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

[i] Financial assets 

Security deposit - 283,45 - - 

Trade receivable - 4,563.08 - - 

Cash and cash equivalents - 1,002.31 - = 

Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalants - 145,22 - - 

Loans = 247 = A 

Other financial assets - 13.48 - - 

- 6,012.69 - - 

[li] Financial liakilities 

Borrowings - 7.520.04 . - 

Trade payables - 2,455,586 - = 

Other financial kabilitios - 1,170.42 - B 
- 11,146,32 - - 

Carrying amount Fair value 
March 31, 2024 

FVYTPL FYTOCI | Amortised Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

[i] Financial assets 

Securily deposit - 204.97 - - 
Trade recenable - 5,000,37 - - 
Cash and cash aquivalents = 204,23 - - 

Bank balances other than cash and cash eguivalants - - 26,10 - - . 

Loans - 797 - - 

Other financial asssts - - 7.5 . - . 

= 5,841.15 - = 

[ii] Financial liabilities 

Bormowings - 8,356.86 - = 

Trade payables - 1,920.39 - - 
Other financial lkabilities - 1,023.77 - - 

- 11,301.02 - i 

(B) FAIRVALUE HEIRARCHY 

Fair valug is the amaunt for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setiled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The 
Company has made certain judgemeants and estimates in determining the fairvalues of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measwred at fair 
value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fairvalues are disclosed in the financial stalemants. 

To provide an indication abaout the rediability of the inputs used in determining falr value, the Company as classified the financial instruments into three levels 
prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each kevel is as fallows: 

Level 1: Level 1 of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to gquoted prices (unadjusited) in active markets for identical assets or 
abalities 

Level 2; Level 2 heirarchy includes financial inatruments that are not traded in an active markst is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the 

uga af observabla market data and rely as little as pogsible cn antity-specific estimatas. 

Level 3: if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on the observable market data, the instrument is included in Lewal 3 heirarchy. 

VALUATIONTECHNIQUES 

Specihic valuation techniques used o value inancial Ingtruments include 
- the use of quoted marked prices for mutual funds 
- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis or such other acceptable valuation methodology, 

whersver applicable 

There are noitems in the financial instrumants, which reguined level 3 valuation. 
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Hote: 35 Capital Management 

The Company policy i 10 have robust financial base 50 a5 to maintain outsiders confidence and 10 sustain future development of the business. Managemant monitors 

the return on capital, as well as level of dividends to equity shareholders. The company monitors capital using a ratic of “adjusted net debt” to “equity”. For this purpose, 

adjusted net debt s defined as 1otal llabllity, Comprising interast-bearing loans and borrowing, less cash and cash equivalents, Total Equity includes the share capital, 

eiher equity 

The capital gearing ratio is as follows: (in As. Lacs) 

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 

Borrowings (Incl. Current Maturity) 7.520.04 B.356.86 

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents: (1,002.31) (504.23) 

Adjusted Net Debt (4) 6,517.73 7.852.63 

Ecquity Share Capital 1,050.00 1,050.00 

Other Equity 12,061.29 10,403.37 

Total Equity (B) 13,111.29 11,453.37 

Adjusted Net Debt to Total Equity ratic (A/B) 0.50 0.69 

Mote: 36 C.ULF. Value of Imports, Expenditure and Earnings in Foreign Currency 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024 

{A) C.LF. Value of imports : 

Raw Malarialks - 

Capital Goods - 

Stores & Spares - 

(B) Expenditure in Foreign currencies: 

Other matters - 

{B) Earnings in Foreign currencies: 

F.CLB. valwe of Exporis 1,716.32 86,57 

Mote: 37 Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

Good and Service Tax liability under dispute before 

commissianer of CGST (Appeal) 218.31 
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MHote: 38 Financial Risk Management 

The Company’s business activities are exposed o a variety of financial risks, viz liquidity risk, market risk and credit risk. The Management of the Company has the 

overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk policy framework. The risk management policies are formulated after the identification and 

anakysis of the risks and suitable risk limits and controls are set which are monitored & reveiwed pericdically. The changes in the market conditions and allied areas 

are accordingly reflected in the changes of the policy. The key rigks and mitigating actions are placed before the Audit Committee of the Company who then evaluate 

and take the necessary cormective action. The sources of risk, which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages these risks with thedr impact on the 

Financial Statements is given below: 

Risk Exposure from Measurement Management 

Credit risk Trade recelvables, Aging analysis, Credit ratings Credit imis and bank gaurantees 

Cash and cash 

Ligyuiciity risk Barrowings, Trade Cash flow budgeled Vs actuals Availibity of commited credit ines and 

payvables and cther labilities borrowing facilities 

Markel risk - Foreign currency receivables and Cash flow forecasting and Insignificant loreign currency axposure 

Foreign Currency payables; Forecasted fonelgn Sensitivity analysls 

CLFrEmcis transactions 

Marke risk - Lang-term bosrowings at Sansitivity analysis The management mondors the rates of 

Interest rale variable interest rates interests and continues 1o evaluate refinancing 

of debis at lower rates of interest on a 

ragular basis. 

[A] Credit risk 
Credit risk i the risk of financial loss 1o the Company if the counterparty fails 1o meet its contractual obligations, The Company is exposed to credit risk from ils operating 

activities (primarily trade receivables). However, the credit risk on account of financing activities, i.e., balances with banks is very low, since the Company holds allthe 

balances with approved bankers only. 

Trade receivables 
Cradit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit imits and continuoushy monitering the cuslomers outstanding balances to which the Comgany 

grants credit terms in the normal course of business, Concantration of credit risk with respact 1o trade receivables ara limited, as the Company’s customer base is larga, 

reputed and having good credil credential a5 well as that they are long standing customers, All frade receivables are reviewed and assessed for default ona quarterhy 

basis. Historical experiance of collacting receivables of the Company is supported by low |evel of past default and hence the credit risk is perceived to be low. 

[B] Liquidity risk 
Ligguladity rlzk s the risk the Company faces Inmeeting is ebligations assockated with its financial kabdlities. The Company's approach in managing liguidity is 1o ensure 

that it will have sufficient funds o meet its liabilifies when dus without incurring unacceptable lsses. In doing this, Management considers both normal and stressed 

conditions. 

Maturities of financial liabilities 
The balow table analyses the Company's financial liabilities inte relavant maturity groupings based on their contractual malurities. The ameunts disclosed in the table 

are contraciual undiscounted cash flows, balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the Impact of discounting s net significant. 

(ifi A%, Lacs) 

Carrying Upto 1 More than 
Particulars Amount Yoar 1-2Year 2 years Total 

31-Mar-25 

Mon-derivatives 
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 7.520.04 6,918.37 710.85 (109.18) 7.520.04 

Trade payables 245586 2 455 86 - - 2,455.86 

Other financial Rabilities 1,170.42 201.32 = 969.10 1,170.42 

Total 11,146.32 9,575.55 710.85 £59.91 11,146.32 
31-Mar-24 
Non-derivatives 

Borrowings (ncluding interest accrued) 8,356.86 6,795.35 710.85 850.66 8,356.86 

Trade payables 1,920.39 1.920.39 - - 1,920.39 
Othar financial Kabdlities 1.023.77 109.59 - 914.18 1.023.77 

Tolal 11,301.02 8,825.33 T710.85 1,764.84 11,301.02 
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[€] Market risk 
The Comparny’s size and operations result in it being exposed to the following markst risks that arisa from its use of financial instruments: 

. Curmency risk; and 
* Imberest rate rsk 
The above risks may affect the Company's incomes and expenses, or the value of its Anancial instrumants. 

(I} Foreign currency risk 

The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impact the Company’s axports revenua and imports of raw material. The risk 

exposure i with respect 1o various currencies viz, USD. The risk is measured through monitoring the net exposure 1o various loreign currencies and the 

same is minimized to the extent possibla. 

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure 

The Company does not have foreign curmency exposure at the end of the reporting period. 

(b} Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 
The sansitivity of profit and less to changas in the exchange rates arises mainly from loreign currency denaminated financial instruments. As the Company's 

exposure to foreign curmency is insignificant, the overall exposure of foreign currency risk is not significant to the operations of the Compary, 

(l} Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk can be aither fair value interest rabe risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair vales interast rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed 

interest bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctuations in the interest rates, if such assets /borrowings are measured af fair value through 
prafit or koss, Gash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of loating interest bearing borrowings will flucutate because of luctuations in 

the Interest rates. 

Interest rate risk exposure 
The exposurs of the Company 1o change in intarest rate at end of the reporting periods are as follows: 

{in As. Lacs) 

o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
Particulars Amount % of Total Amount % of Total 

Wariable rate borrowing 7.,520.04 100.00% 8,358,856 100.00%% 

Fined rate borrowing - 0.00% - 0.00% 

7,520.04 8,356.86 

Sensitivity 

Profit ans loss |s sensitive to higheriower interest expenses from borrowing as a result of change in interset rate. (in Rs. Lacs) 

- March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024 
Particulars 

Impact on profit after tax Impact on profit after tax 

Intarast rate incraasa by 100 basis points {100.41) (111.75) 

Interest rate decrease by 100 basis points 100.41 111.75 
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Hole: 39 Segment Information ; 

{a) Primary segment - Business Segment 

The Company’s oparations fall under bwo operating segment "Milk and Milk Products® & "Namkean Products”. However on the basis of managament’s evaluation of tha 

namkeen products segment, the segment does not meet quantitative thresholds criteria, hence, segment reporting is not applicable as per Indian Accounting Standard 

(Ind AS) - 108 - Segment Reparting. 

(b}Secondary segment - Geagraphical Segment 

Infarmatien of geographical segment: (in As. Lacs) 

In India Outside India Total 
Particulars Year (Rs.In lakhs) | (Rs.Inlakhs) | (Rs.In lakhs) 

2024-25 33.960.73 56,68 3402642 Segment Revenus 0E3-24 30 GER BE 18,27 3267683 

Carrying cost of Assels by 2024-25 398726 3,087 06 

location of Assels 2023-24 4,393.32 4,393.32 

Additions 10 Assets and InMangibles 2024-25 2.044.25 2.044.25 
2023-24 1241186 1.241.16 

Male: 40 

1. Prendiows year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified as par requirement wharavar necassary. 

2 The outstanding balance as on year and in respect of trade receivables, trade payables, loans and advances and other payables, and other receivables, if 

any, are subject to confirmation from respective parties and consequential reconciliation andfor adjustmeants arising thare from, if any. Management of the 
Company, however, does not expect any material variation. 

i According to the opinion of the management of the Company, the value of realization of trade and other receivables and loans and advances given in the 
ordinary course of the buginess, it any, would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in the balance shesat, 
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